
 

 
 

 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
AGENDA 

November 18, 2024 
4:00 pm 

Meeting Location: 
200 E. Center Avenue 

Visalia, CA 93291 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the California Ralph M. Brown 
Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids, 
translation requests, or other accommodations, or to be able to access this agenda and 
documents in the agenda packet, please contact the Tulare County Regional Transit 
Agency (“TCRTA”) office at 559-623-0832 at least 3 days prior to the meeting. Any staff 
reports and supporting materials provided to the Board after the distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection at the TCRTA office. 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER, WELCOME, AND ROLL CALL  
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

III. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
IV. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS: 

NOTE: This meeting will allow the public to participate in the meeting via Microsoft Teams using the 
following link: 
 

Join the meeting now 
 
Meeting ID: 297 922 786 546 

Passcode: ejYz8b  

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 

At this time, members of the public may comment on any item of interest to the public and within the 
subject matter jurisdiction of TCRTA but not appearing on this agenda. Under state law, matters 
presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the Board at this time. For items 
appearing on the agenda, the public is invited to make comments at the time the item comes up for 
Board consideration. Any person addressing the Board will be limited to a maximum of three (3) 
minutes so that all interested parties have an opportunity to speak with a total of fifteen (15) minutes 
allotted for the Public Comment Period. Speakers are requested to state their name(s) and 
address(es) for the record. 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MmMxYzIyNDEtNmY2ZS00MzI0LTg1MDctMGE0M2I0MmI2MTY5%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22e9ab118a-9355-41a6-aaad-633046c798b9%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22d032a0cc-4b5c-49f5-8313-c6f262b5ffda%22%7d


All Consent Calendar Items are considered routine and will be enacted in one 
motion. There will be no separate discussion of these matters unless a request is 
made, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar. All 
items removed from the Consent Calendar for further discussion will be heard at 
the end of Action / Discussion Items. 
Request Approval of the Consent Calendar Items  
A. Approve Minutes of October 21, 2024 (Pages 01-02) 
B. Approve Minutes of Special Meeting November 4, 2024 (Pages 03-03) 
C. Information: Monthly Ridership Summary (Pages 05-06) 
D. Information: Financial Statement (Pages 07-08) 
E. Action: Adoption of Resolution 2024-030 to Approve TCAG TCRTA SB 125 

Program Cooperative Agreement (Pages 09-49) 
F. Action: Adoption of Resolution 2024-031 to Approve Agreement with TCAG 

for COS Student Transit Pass Program (Pages 51-58) 

V. ACTION/ DISCUSSION ITEMS:   
A. Action: Adoption of Resolution 2024-032 to Approve Interim Finance 

Manager (Pages 59-62) 
B. Action: Adoption of Resolution 2024-033 Transdev Services Agreement 

Amendment 1 (Pages 63-69) 
C. Public Hearing: Microtransit Service Changes (Pages 71-72) 
D. Action: Adoption of Resolution 2024-034 Microtransit Redeployment and 

Microtransit Pilot Target Performance Metrics (Pages 73-80) 
E. Information: FY 23/24 TPASS Distribution Memo (Pages 81-84) 
F. Information: Microtransit Minor Rider Safety Policies (Pages 85-87) 

VI. CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 
It is the intention of the Board of Directors to meet in closed session concerning: 
A. § 54956.9(d) (1) – Pending Litigation 

City of Porterville v. TCRTA 
Tulare County Superior Court Case No. VCU312913 

 
RECONVENE OPEN SESSION 

VII. OTHER BUSINESS: 
A. Action: Approve Board Meeting Schedule for Calendar Year 2025 

                      (Pages 89-91) 
B. Requests from Board Members for Future Agenda Items 
C. Director’s Report  

VIII. ADJOURN: 
The next regularly scheduled Tulare County Regional Transit Agency (TCRTA) 
Board meeting will be Monday, December 9, 2024, and will take place at 3:00 
pm at the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency (TCRTA), 200 E. Center 
Avenue, Visalia, CA 93291. 

 

TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS ALTERNATE AGENCY  

Maribel Reynosa Kuldip Thusu City of Dinuba 
Vicki Riddle Frankie Alves City of Exeter 
Greg Gomez – Vice Chair Armando Hinojosa City of Farmersville 
Ramiro Serna Rosaena Sanchez City of Lindsay 
Jose Sigala – Chair  Terry Sayre City of Tulare 
Jose Martinez Rudy Mendoza City of Woodlake 
Larry Micari Amy Shuklian County of Tulare 
Vacant Vacant Tule River Tribe 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS          

Georgina Landecho, CalVans 
Liz Wynn, TCAG Public Transit Representative 

TCRTA STAFF           

Derek Winning, TCRTA Interim Executive Director 
Vacant, TCRTA Transit Planning Manager 
Vacant, TCRTA Finance Manager 
Vacant, TCRTA Transit Analyst 
Clayton Landis, TCRTA Transit Analyst 
Olivia Forte, TCRTA Transit Analyst 
Melissa Cashen, TCRTA Accountant II 
Ashlee Compton, TCRTA Administrative Clerk I 
*Thomas Degn, County Counsel 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

TCRTA 
200 E. Center Avenue 

Visalia, CA 93291 
Phone: (559) 623-0832 

www.gotcrta.org 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TCRTA 
2024 Board Meeting Schedule 

 



Date Location 

January 29, 2024* 
 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
210 N. Church St., Visalia, CA 93291 

 

February 21, 2024* 
 

Tulare Public Library and Council Chambers  
491 North M Street, Tulare, CA 93274 

 

March 18, 2024 
 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
210 N. Church St., Visalia, CA 93291 

 

April 15, 2024 
Rescheduled: April 22, 2024 

 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
210 N. Church St., Visalia, CA 93291 

 

May 20, 2024 
 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
210 N. Church St., Visalia, CA 93291 

 

June 17, 2024 
Rescheduled: June 26, 2024 

 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
210 N. Church St., Visalia, CA 93291 

 

July 15, 2024 
Rescheduled: July 22, 2024 

 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E. Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

 

August 19, 2024 
 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E. Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

 

September 16, 2024 
 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E. Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

 

October 21, 2024 
 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E. Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

 

November 18, 2024 
 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E. Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

 

December 16, 2024 
Rescheduled December 9, 
2024, at 3:00 PM 

 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E. Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

 

 
The TCRTA Board meets at 4:00 pm. Most meetings fall on the third Monday of each 
month. Meeting dates with asterisks have been changed due to holidays and/or  
calendar conflicts. 
 
Meetings will be held at the location noted above for each month, unless otherwise 
noted in that month’s agenda. All meeting dates are subject to change. 

 



Item IV-A 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
Board Meeting Minutes 

October 21, 2024, 4:00 p.m. 

Members Present: Reynosa, Riddle, Gomez, Serna, Sigala, Martinez, Micari 
Members Absent: 
Non-Voting Alternates:   
Ex Officio Present: 
Staff Present: Derek Winning, Melissa Cashen, Teresa Ortega, Clayton 

Landis, Olivia Forte, Ashlee Compton 
Counsel Present: Thomas Degn 
*Board member attended online or due to emergency or just cause.
I. CALL TO ORDER:

Chair Sigala called the meeting to order at 4:01 p.m.
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

Led by Chair Sigala
III. PUBLIC COMMENT:

John Lollis, Assistant City Manager, City of Visalia: Stated that Derek’s appointment as
Director has been a return to professionalism and ethics in the position. I don’t know if 
the board is aware that the City of Visalia received an invoice of $47,000 for T-Pass 
distribution revenue, which in the evaluation of ridership and actual calculations by the 
city, the city was owed $90,000. I just want to say thank you to the administration, 
focusing on data and study. 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS:
All Consent Calendar Items are considered routine and will be enacted in one motion.
There will be no separate discussion of these matters unless a request is made, in which
event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar. All items removed from the
Consent Calendar for further discussion will be heard at the end of Action / Discussion
Items.
Request Approval of the Consent Calendar Items
A. Approve Minutes of September 16, 2024
B. Approve Minutes of Special Meeting October 10, 2024
C. Information: Monthly Ridership Summary
D. Information: Financial Statement
E. Information: Grants Update

Motion: Martinez
Second: Gomez

II. ACTION ITEM & PRESENTATION:
A. Action: Adoption of Resolution 2024-026 Establishment of a Technical Advisory

Committee (TAC)
Notes: Staff requested this item to be withdrawn. Mr. Winning commented that it is
important for the Director of this organization to communicate effectively with its
members, and he will endeavor to do so and work with Counsel. Chair Sigala
commented that there will be continued discussions, Item has been withdrawn.

B. Action: Adoption of Resolution 2024-027 Peak Transit Software License Agreement
Motion: Gomez
Second: Riddle
Notes: Director Micari requested an annual report.

1



Item IV-A 

C. Action: Adoption of Resolution 2024-028 Contract Extension with Brown Armstrong
for Main and Single Audits for FY 2024
Motion: Micari
Second: Martinez
Notes:

D. Information: Election of TCRTA Chair/ Vice Chair
Notes: No Action. Reminder to the board that the elections of the TCRTA Chair and
Vice Chair are coming up. Terms are held for two years, and there are no
stipulations on how many terms the Chair or Vice Chair can hold.

III. CLOSED SESSION ITEMS:
It is the intention of the Board of Directors to meet in closed session concerning:

A. § 54956.9(d) (1) – Pending Litigation (Settlement)
City of Porterville v. TCRTA
Tulare County Superior Court Case No. VCU312913

Report: Nothing to Report. 

IV. OTHER BUSINESS:
A. Action: Approve Board Meeting Agenda for Calendar Year 2025

Motion: Riddle
Second: Gomez
Notes: Director Riddle suggested changing the meeting time. The board discussed
options of different days and times for the TCRTA Board to meet. The action is to
change the meeting time from 4:00 PM to 4:30 PM.

B. Action: Approve Board Meeting Schedule for December 2024
Motion: Martinez
Second: Riddle
Notes: The Board discussed and approved rescheduling the December 2024
meeting to December 9, 2024, at 3:00 PM.

C. Requests from Board Members for Future Agenda Items
Notes: Mr. Winning commented that there will be a Director’s Report agendized as
a standing item. He reported on a Public Notice that was posted on Thursday
October 18, 2024, regarding proposed changes to TCRTA
microtransit service.

V. ADJOURN:
The meeting adjourned at 6:01 p.m. Chair Sigala confirmed the next scheduled meeting
of the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency (TCRTA) Board of Directors will be held
on Monday, November 18, 2024, and will take place at 4:00 pm at the Tulare County
Regional Transit Agency (TCRTA), 200 E. Center Avenue, Visalia, CA 93291.

2



Item IV – B 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
Special Board Meeting Minutes 

November 4, 2024, 3:00 p.m. 

Members Present: Riddle, Gomez, Sigala, Mendoza, Micari 
Members Absent: Reynosa, Serna   
Non-Voting Alternates:   
Ex Officio Present: 
Staff Present: Derek Winning, Melissa Cashen, Clayton Landis, Olivia 

Forte, Ashlee Compton 
Counsel Present: Thomas Degn 
*Board member attended online or due to emergency or just cause.
I. CALL TO ORDER:

Chair Sigala called the meeting to order at 3:22 p.m.

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
Led by Chair Sigala

III. PUBLIC COMMENT:
No Public Comment

IV. CLOSED SESSION ITEMS:
It is the intention of the Board of Directors to meet in closed session concerning: 

A. § 54956.9(d) (1) – Pending Litigation (Settlement)
City of Porterville v. TCRTA
Tulare County Superior Court Case No. VCU312913

RECONVENE OPEN SESSION 

V. ANNOUNCEMENT FROM CLOSED SESSION (IF ANY):

Report: Nothing to report. 

VI. ADJOURN:
The meeting adjourned at 4:01 p.m. Chair Sigala confirmed the next scheduled
meeting of the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency (TCRTA) Board of Directors
will be held on Monday, November 18, 2024, and will take place at 4:00 pm at the
Tulare County Regional Transit Agency (TCRTA), 200 E. Center Avenue, Visalia, CA
93291.

3



This page intentionally left blank. 

4



AGENDA ITEM IV-C
Ridership Summary Report (FY 24-25)

Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 ANNUAL Comments

OPERATING DAYS

Weekday 22 22 20 23 18 19 21 19 21 22 21 21 249

Saturday 4 5 4 4 5 4 4 4 5 4 5 4 52

Sunday 4 4 5 4 6 7 5 5 5 3 4 5 57

TOTAL OPERATING DAYS 30 31 29 31 29 30 30 28 31 29 30 30 358

FIXED ROUTE RIDERSHIP

Dinuba: D1 709 595 549 1,853 D1/D3 service uses 1 bus

D2 670 693 678 2,041 D2/D4 service uses 1 bus

D3 196 258 259 713 D1/D3 service uses 1 bus

D4 421 702 608 1,731 D2/D4 service uses 1 bus

(Dinuba Connection) DC 198 1,174 1,318 2,690 Reduced service during Summer (May-August)

Dinuba Totals 2,194 3,422 3,412 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,028

Tulare: T1 1,630 1,649 2,321 5,600

T2 1,849 1,757 2,470 6,076

T3 1,719 1,763 2,261 5,743

T4 3,122 2,376 2,596 8,094

T5 2,068 1,793 1,801 5,662

T6 1,006 1,439 1,636 4,081

(Tulare) 11X 1,721 2,266 2,570 6,557

Tulare Totals 13,115 13,043 15,655 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 41,813

Commuter: C10 2,483 3,508 3,677 9,668

C20 1,514 1,643 1,819 4,976

C30 2,387 2,284 3,204 7,875

C40 2,274 2,963 2,862 8,099

C70 49 49 55 153 Service only runs M-F; C70-C90 service uses 1 bus

C80 57 62 82 201 Service only runs M-F; C70-C90 service uses 1 bus

C90 213 330 550 1,093 Service only runs M-F; C70-C90 service uses 1 bus

County Totals 8,977 10,839 12,249 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 32,065

Tule River Tribe (TR) 59 56 36 151 Service reinstated on April 1, 2024

TOTAL RIDERSHIP 24,345 27,360 31,352 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 83,057

PARATRANSIT RIDERSHIP

Dinuba 71 89 94 254

Lindsay 33 68 38 139

Tulare 220 360 366 946

Woodlake 102 218 233 553

County 97 43 63 203

TOTAL RIDERSHIP 523 778 794 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,095 Service commingled with Microtransit

MICROTRANSIT RIDERSHIP

Dinuba 239 285 268 792

Farmersville 29 51 67 147

Lindsay 49 70 87 206

Tulare 160 361 357 878

Woodlake 38 41 35 114

County 163 202 237 602

Visalia 123 366 488 977

TOTAL RIDERSHIP 801 1,376 1,539 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,716 Service commingled with Paratransit

Rider Account Creations 420 423 369 1,212

Note: All data in this report is preliminary. Totals will be validated at the end of the fiscal year.

Page 1 of 2 5



AGENDA ITEM IV-C
Ridership Summary Report (FY 24-25)

Service Provided by Visalia Transit
FIXED ROUTE RIDERSHIP

Exeter Boardings (Route 9) 734 72 733 1,539

TOTAL EXETER RIDERSHIP 734 72 733 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,539

Farmersville Boardings (Route 9) 487 121 688 1,296

Farmersville Boardings (Route 12) 459 629 514 1,602

TOTAL FARMERSVILLE RIDERSHIP 946 750 1,202 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,898

DIAL-A-RIDE RIDERSHIP

Trips from Exeter 117 61 84 262

Trips to Exeter 117 77 83 277

TOTAL EXETER RIDERSHIP 234 138 167 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 539

Trips from Farmersville 78 38 32 148

Trips to Farmersville 74 36 29 139

TOTAL FARMERSVILLE RIDERSHIP 152 74 61 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 287

Page 2 of 2 6



 
 
 

   

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM IV-D 
November 18th, 2024 
Prepared by Melissa Cashen, Accountant II 
 
 
SUBJECT: 

Action: Receive and File Preliminary Financial Statement as of October 31st, 
2024  

BACKGROUND: 
The following Preliminary Financial Statement as of October 31st, 2024, provides 
October’s Revenues and Expenses compared to the Fiscal Year 2024-20245 Budget.  

DISCUSSION: 
This Financial Statement for October 31st, 2024, is preliminary, as the Fiscal Year 
2024-2025 is closing, and other accruals are pending.   

RECOMMENDATION:  
That the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency Board of Directors receive and file the 
Preliminary Financial Statement as of October 31st, 2024. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Preliminary Financial Statement for October 31st, 2024. 

 

7



TCRTA
Operating Budget

Revenue and Expenditures FY 24-25

24-25 Budget Operations October Year to Date 
Revenues

4801 Interest -$     102,676.55$   
5054 State-Other 8,904,699 947,371.00$       1,935,871.00$        
5220 Other Revenue 0 -$     -$      
5700 Fed-Other 8,625,210 -$     -$      
5835 Other Revenue 1,087,500 975.00$     
5873 Public Transit Passenger Fares 450,000 43,726.24$         249,375.98$      

19,067,409 991,097.24$       2,288,898.53$        
Expenses

6001 Salaries   1,096,498 273,669.33$       439,852.86$      
Total Salaries & Benefits 1,096,498 273,669.33$       439,852.86$      

7000 Services & Supplies 1,470 -$     -$      
7005 Communications(IT,Telephone,Radio) 47,553 3,379.25$      10,604.87$        
7010 Insurance (Liab&Auto) 159,356 -$     -$      
7021 Maint-Equip 0 287,121.47$   
7024 Maint-Blds 73,295 -$         
7036 Office Expense 19,793 4,639.55$      12,558.68$        
7040 Courier 5,680 -$     -$      
7043 Professional & Spec 17,084,878 1,241,237.39$         2,833,991.27$        
7062 Rent & Lease 31,415 8,782.20$      13,822.20$        
7066 Spec Dept Exp 283,592 185,248.28$       289,334.33$      
7073 Training 5,850 -$     -$      
7074 Transportation & Travel 17,930 734.19$        1,934.93$      
7081 Utilities 240,099 45,656.00$         103,973.62$      

17,970,911 1,489,676.86$         3,559,191.37$        

Total Budget 19,067,409 1,763,346.19$         3,999,044.23$        
Net Profit(loss) 0 (772,248.95)$      (1,576,701.46)$       

Item IV-D-1

8



1 
 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
 

AGENDA ITEM IV-E 

November 18, 2024 
Prepared by Derek Winning, TCRTA Staff  
 
SUBJECT: 

Action: Adoption of Resolution 2024-030 approving TCAG TCRTA SB 125 Program 
Cooperative Agreement.  

BACKGROUND: 

In July 2023, the California State Legislature approved SB 125, which amended the 
Budget Act of 2023 to appropriate $4 billion of General Fund to the Transit and Intercity 
Rail Capital Program (TIRCP) over the next two (2) years, as well as a total of $1 billion 
from the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF) and Public Transportation Account 
(PTA) over four (4) years to establish a new Zero-Emission Transit Capital Program 
(ZETCP). The program is administered by the California State Transportation Agency 
(CalSTA). 

Tulare County Association of Governments (TCAG) is due to receive approximately $56 
million through the life of the program and has already received its first-year allocation of 
$27,053,561. In the interest of allowing member agencies who are receiving SB 125 funds 
to proceed with their projects as quickly as possible, TCAG staff have drafted a master 
agreement for the use of SB 125 program funds that is modeled on the Measure R master 
agreement.  

DISCUSSION: 
SB 125 guidelines require submission of an Annual Report to CalSTA but provide regional 
transportation planning agencies (RTPAs) discretion regarding the administration of 
program funds. TCAG staff have therefore proposed to utilize a master agreement 
modeled on the Measure R master agreements with member agencies. Staff worked with 
County Counsel to adapt the agreement language for this program. 
If approved and executed, the master agreements would be maintained as standing 
agreements. The SB 125 program guidelines have been incorporated by reference. A 
template for program supplements has also been produced. 
This agreement will not have any force or effect on transit projects unless and until a 
project-specific Program Supplement to this Agreement has been fully executed by both 
the Authority and the Sponsor. 
 
 

9



2 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adoption of Resolution 2024-030 authorizing the TCRTA Interim Executive Director to 
sign the TCAG TCRTA SB 125 Program Cooperative Agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. TCAG TCRTA SB 125 Program Cooperative Agreement  
2. Resolution 2024-030 Approving TCAG TCRTA SB 125 Program Cooperative 

Agreement  

10



Item IV-E-1 

1 

SB 125 PROGRAM COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

THIS SB 125 PROGRAM COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered 
into on _____________________, by and between the TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT 
AGENCY ("SPONSOR") and the TULARE COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS, acting as 
the Regional Transportation Planning Agency for Tulare County ("TCAG"). SPONSOR and TCAG are 
each a “Party” and together are the “Parties” to this Agreement, which is made with reference to the 
following: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, TCAG and SPONSOR desire to enter into an Agreement for funding of transit capital 
improvements and/or operational costs in Tulare County pursuant to the authority provided by the State 
of California’s Budget Act of 2023 SB 125 Program Formula-Based Transit and Intercity Rail Capital 
Program & Zero Emission Transit Capital Program (“SB 125 Program”); and 

WHEREAS, SPONSOR desires to receive SB 125 Program funding from TCAG for transit capital 
improvement projects and/or operational costs ("Projects") to be developed and/or identified by 
SPONSOR; and,  

WHEREAS, TCAG is authorized under the SB 125 Program to disburse SB 125 Program funds to 
SPONSOR in accordance with the “Final Guidelines” promulgated as of September 29, 2023 for the SB 125 
Program by the California State Transportation Agency, as those “Final Guidelines” may be amended or 
supplemented from time-to-time (the “SB 125 Program Guidelines”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties represent, covenant and agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

This Agreement shall have no force or effect with respect to a specific Project unless and until 
a project-specific Program Supplement to this Agreement (a “Program Supplement”) has been fully 
executed by both TCAG and SPONSOR.  

SECTION I 
Covenants of SPONSOR 

1.1 Compliance with SB 125 Program Requirements. SPONSOR agrees to abide by the terms and 
conditions of TCAG as set forth herein for the receipt of SB 125 Program funds and to comply with the SB 
125 Program Guidelines (Appendix); and TCAG’S adopted SB 125 Program Polices and Procedures, if 
any, as well as any subsequent amendments or updates thereto. 

11



Item IV-E-1 

2 

1.2. Project Application. 

1.2a. Transit Capital Improvement and/or Operational Costs Projects - The complete 
Project description, scope of work, delivery schedule, estimate of cost by activity, anticipated amount and 
type of funds that will supplement SB 125 Program funds, and the anticipated timing for release of SB 125 
Program funds shall be specified in SPONSOR’S application for SB 125 Program funds and approved by 
TCAG. Such an application is in addition to any annual transit expansion or equivalent plan or 
application that SPONSOR may be required to submit to TCAG in order to receive Measure R or other 
transit planning, operational, or capital improvement funds. 

1.3. Project Scope. A Project scope of work or any change to such may not be implemented until it 
has been approved by TCAG in accordance with the SB 125 Program Guidelines.  

1.4. Eligible Reimbursement Costs. Eligible reimbursement costs shall be costs as specified in the 
SB 125 Program Guidelines or as may be approved from time to time by TCAG pursuant to Section 1.2. In 
no event shall expenses incurred prior to the execution of this Agreement be considered eligible 
reimbursement costs. 

1.5. SB 125 Program Percentage Share Defined. For this Agreement, the SB 125 Program 
percentage share of eligible costs shall be as set forth in the approved application for the specific Project. 

1.6. Invoices and Progress Reports. Starting one month after the execution of this Agreement, 
SPONSOR shall provide TCAG with quarterly progress reports concerning the Project. SPONSOR shall 
provide invoices no less than monthly for activities conducted over the prior unbilled month. These 
documents shall include the following specified information: 

1.6.a. SPONSOR’S Staff Expenses. SPONSOR may include in the invoice direct staff 
expenses for the eligible costs of the Project.  

1.6.b. Copies of Consultant Invoices. SPONSOR shall provide TCAG with one (1) copy of 
all invoices submitted to SPONSOR by every consultant, subconsultant, contractor, or subcontractor 
performing work related to the Project. 

1.6.c. Progress Reports. The quarterly progress reports shall include a brief description of 
the status of the Project and the work completed to date. This summary may be included on the invoices 
submitted to TCAG or be attached to those invoices. 

1.6.d. Deadline to Submit Reimbursement Requests. All invoices and progress reports 
shall be submitted to TCAG on or before 5:00 p.m. on the tenth (10th) calendar day of the month in which 
SPONSOR requests reimbursement payments. TCAG shall issue reimbursement payments to SPONSOR 
on or before the last day of the month for all timely submittals.  

1.6.e. Late Submittals. If SPONSOR fails to submit documents to TCAG as set forth in 
Section 1.5.d, above, then TCAG shall provide reimbursement payments for late submittals in the 
following calendar month.  

12



 
 

Item IV-E-1 

3 

1.7. Use of Funds. SPONSOR shall use SB 125 Program funds consistent with the Project scope of 
work approved by TCAG pursuant to Section 1.2.  

 
1.8. Submittal of Documents. SPONSOR shall provide copies to TCAG of all executed contracts 

which relate to the Project scope approved by TCAG pursuant to Section 1.2. SPONSOR shall retain 
records pertaining to the Project for a four (4) year period following completion of the Project.  

 
1.9. Completion of Project. SPONSOR shall be responsible for the timely completion of 

construction and provide management of consultant and contractor activities, including responsibility for 
schedule, budget and oversight of the services, consistent with the scope of work. 

 
1.9.a. Letter of Project Completion. SPONSOR shall provide TCAG with a letter of Project 

completion which includes final cost, revenues, and schedule of activities. This letter shall accompany the 
final invoice for payment from SPONSOR to provide notice of Project account closing by TCAG. 
 

1.10. Provision of Signs. SPONSOR shall install SB 125 Program signs approved and/or required 
by TCAG. SB 125 Program Signs shall be posted at locations agreed upon by TCAG and SPONSOR. 
 

1.11. Cost-Savings and Excess Costs.  
 

1.11.a. Definition of Cost Savings. After a Project has been accepted by SPONSOR as 
complete, any positive difference between the total Project cost, as approved by TCAG pursuant to 
Section 1.2, and the total amount invoiced to TCAG shall be considered Project cost savings.  
 

1.11.b. Cost Savings. If, according to the most recently amended SB 125 Program 
Guidelines, the Projects are not segments of a larger project, or if all other segments of the larger project 
have been completed, then TCAG shall allocate the SB 125 Program share according to the Adopted 
Policies and Procedures, if any. 
 

1.11.c. Segmented Projects. If, according to the most recently amended SB 125 Program 
Guidelines, the Project is a segment of a larger project and other segments have not been completed, then 
TCAG shall allocate the SB 125 Program share (as specified in Section 1.4) of these cost savings to the 
uncompleted segment(s) of the larger project.  
 

1.11.d. Excess Costs: If the actual total Project costs exceed the estimate approved by 
TCAG, then this amount will be considered an excess cost. 

 
1.11.e. Reconciliation of Excess Costs: If the costs to complete the Project exceed the total 

amount of funds programmed, SPONSOR will be fiscally responsible for the full amount of excess costs 
associated with SPONSOR’S Project, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties pursuant to Section 2.4. 
 

1.12. Provision of Groundbreaking and Ribbon Cutting Ceremonies. SPONSOR shall be 
responsible for groundbreaking ceremonies and ribbon cutting ceremonies, if any, related to their 
Project(s) and as determined necessary by TCAG and SPONSOR. SPONSOR may contract either or both 
ceremonies through private consultants. Any such ceremonies shall be coordinated with the Public 

13



 
 

Item IV-E-1 

4 

Relations Officer of TCAG. The costs of all ceremonies will be an expense of the Project.  
 

SECTION II 
Covenants of TCAG 

 
2.1 SB 125 Program Funds. TCAG agrees to disburse SB 125 Program funds for the costs of 

SPONSOR’S Project(s) according to the terms and conditions set forth herein, and to comply with the SB 
125 Program Guidelines and; and TCAG’S adopted SB 125 Program Polices and Procedures, if any, as well 
as any subsequent amendments or updates. 
 

2.2. Reimbursement Payments. TCAG shall make reimbursement payments to SPONSOR for 
eligible Project costs as specified in the SB 125 Program Guidelines and subsequent updates of the SB 125 
Program Guidelines. To receive monthly reimbursement payments for work completed on the Project, 
SPONSOR shall comply with the following reimbursement procedures: 
 

2.2.a. Ineligible Costs. The TCAG reserves the right to adjust current or future 
reimbursement payments to SPONSOR if an invoice includes ineligible costs. 
 

2.2.b. Reimbursement Amount. The amount of reimbursement payments to SPONSOR 
shall be made pursuant to the SB 125 Program Guidelines. 
 

2.2.c. Suspension of Reimbursement. TCAG shall timely pay or reimburse SPONSOR for 
all undisputed cost items. Reimbursement payments for the item(s) in question shall be suspended 
without interest when a dispute arises as to whether or not a cost item(s) is eligible for reimbursement.  

 
2.2.c. (1) Meeting. If a dispute over reimbursement or payment occurs, then TCAG 

shall arrange a meeting between TCAG and SPONSOR to discuss and attempt to resolve the dispute. If 
the invoice was received on or before 5:00 p.m. on the 10th day of the month (or if the 10th is not a business 
day, then the next business day), then the meeting shall be held no later than the 20th day of the same 
month. If the invoice was received after this date and time, then the meeting shall be held no later than the 
20th day of the following month. 

 
2.2.c. (2) Technical Advisory Committee. If an agreement cannot be reached at the 

meeting referenced above, then SPONSOR or TCAG shall have the option to take the dispute to TCAG’S 
Technical Advisory Committee, with the understanding that by doing so the payment or reimbursement 
for the disputed cost item(s) will be delayed until a resolution of the matter is reached. 

 
2.2.c. (3) Governing Board Decision. If SPONSOR or TCAG disagrees with the 

dispute resolution proposed by the Technical Advisory Committee, then the dispute shall be submitted to 
TCAG Governing Board for final resolution. Reimbursement or payment for the disputed cost item(s) will 
be further delayed until a resolution of the matter is reached by the TCAG Governing Board. If the TCAG 
Governing Board determines that the disputed cost item(s) is ineligible for payment or reimbursement, 
then TCAG shall not provide reimbursement or payment to SPONSOR for the disputed item(s). If the 
TCAG Governing Board determines that the disputed cost item(s) is eligible for payment or 
reimbursement, in whole or in part, then TCAG promptly shall provide reimbursement or payment to 

14



 
 

Item IV-E-1 

5 

SPONSOR for such portion of the disputed cost. The decision of the TCAG Governing Board shall be 
considered to be final for administrative purposes and not subject to reconsideration or further 
administrative appeal or review. 

 
2.2.c. (4) Reservation of Rights. By utilizing the above procedures, SPONSOR does 

not surrender any rights to pursue available legal remedies if SPONSOR disagrees with a TCAG 
Governing Board decision. 
 

2.2.d. Acceptance of Work Does Not Result In Waiver. Reimbursement payments shall not 
result in a waiver of the right of TCAG to require fulfillment of all terms of this Agreement. 

 
2.3. Right to Conduct Audit. TCAG shall have the right to conduct an audit of all SPONSOR’S 

records pertaining to Projects at any time during the four (4) year period after completion of the Projects.  
 

 2.4. Reconciliation of Excess Costs. If the costs to complete a Project exceed the total amount of 
funds programmed, then TCAG may, by further agreement with SPONSOR, agree to provide additional 
SB 125 Program or other funding for the Project. 

 
SECTION III 

Mutual Covenants 
 

3.1. Release of liability. SPONSOR hereby releases TCAG from any liability to SPONSOR 
regarding TCAG’S administration and issuance of the SB 125 Program funds, except for any breach of 
TCAG’S fiduciary duty as set forth in the SB 125 Program Guidelines. 

 
3.2. Term. This Agreement shall remain in effect until discharged or terminated as provided in 

Section 3.3 or Section 3.15. 
 
3.3. Discharge. This Agreement shall be subject to discharge as follows: 
 

3.3.a. Termination by Mutual Consent. This Agreement may be terminated between 
SPONSOR and TCAG at any time by mutual consent of SPONSOR and TCAG. If this Agreement is 
mutually terminated by the Parties, then SPONSOR will no longer receive SB 125 Program funds unless a 
new agreement between SPONSOR and TCAG is formed. 

 
3.3.b. Discharge Upon Completion of Project. Except as to any rights or obligations which 

survive discharge as specified in Section 3.14 below, this Agreement shall be discharged, and the Parties 
shall have no further obligation to each other, upon completion of all of SPONSOR’S projects as certified 
by TCAG.  
 

3.4. Indemnity. It is mutually understood and agreed, relative to the reciprocal indemnification of 
TCAG and SPONSOR: 

 
3.4.a. Indemnity. SPONSOR shall fully defend, indemnify and hold harmless TCAG, and 

any officer or employee of TCAG, against any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or 

15



 
 

Item IV-E-1 

6 

omitted to be done by SPONSOR under the Agreement and related to SPONSOR’S Project(s). It is also 
fully understood and agreed that, pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, SPONSOR shall fully 
defend, indemnify and hold TCAG harmless from any liability imposed for injury as defined by 
Government Code Section 810.8 occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by 
SPONSOR under this Agreement or in connection with any work, authority, or jurisdiction delegated to 
SPONSOR under this Agreement. 
 

3.4.b. Indemnity. TCAG shall fully defend, indemnify and hold harmless SPONSOR, and 
any officer or employee of SPONSOR, against any damage or liability occurring because of anything done 
or omitted to be done by TCAG under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction delegated 
to TCAG under the Agreement and related to SPONSOR’S Project(s). It is also understood and agreed 
that, pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, TCAG shall fully defend, indemnify and hold 
SPONSOR harmless from any liability imposed for injury as defined by Government Code Section 810.8 
occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by TCAG under this Agreement or in 
connection with any work, authority, or jurisdiction delegated to TCAG under this Agreement. 
 

3.5. Notices. Except as may be otherwise required by law, any notice to be given shall be 
written and shall be either personally delivered, sent by facsimile transmission or sent by first class 
mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows: 
  
 TCAG:       SPONSOR: 
 Executive Director     Interim Executive Director 

Tulare County Association of Governments  Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
 210 N. Church St. Ste B    200 E. Center Ave  

Visalia CA 93291     Visalia, CA 93291 
 Fax No.: 559-733 6720     Fax No.:   N/A 
     

3.5.a. Notice personally delivered is effective when delivered. Notice sent by facsimile 
transmission is deemed to be received upon successful transmission. Notice sent by first class mail 
shall be deemed received on the fifth day after the date of mailing. Either Party may change the above 
address by giving written notice pursuant to this paragraph. 
 

3.5.b. Either Party may change its address by giving notice of such changes to the other 
Party in the manner provided in this Section 3.5. All notices and other communications shall be deemed 
communicated as of actual receipt or after the second business day after deposit in the United States mail. 
 

3.6. Additional Acts and Documents. Each Party agrees to do all such things and take all such 
actions, and to make, execute and deliver such other documents and instruments, as shall be reasonably 
requested to carry out the provisions, intent, and purpose of the Agreement. 
 

3.7. Integration. This Agreement, together with any associated Program Supplement, represents 
the entire Agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. No representations, 
warranties, inducements or oral agreements have been made by either of the Parties except as expressly 
set forth herein, or in other contemporaneous written agreements. 

 

16



 
 

Item IV-E-1 

7 

3.8. Amendment. This Agreement may not be changed, modified or rescinded except in writing, 
signed by all Parties hereto, and any attempt at oral modification of this Agreement shall be void and of 
no effect. 
 

3.9. Independent Agency. SPONSOR renders services under this Agreement as an independent 
agency and TCAG is also an independent agency under the Agreement. None of SPONSOR’S agents or 
employees shall be agents or employees of TCAG and none of TCAG’S agents or employees shall be 
agents or employees of SPONSOR. 
 

3.10. Assignment and Delegation. The Agreement may not be assigned, transferred, 
hypothecated, or pledged by either Party, nor may either Party delegate its duties or responsibilities 
hereunder, without the express written consent of the other Party. 

 
3.11. Binding on Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successor(s), assignee(s) 

or transferee(s) of the Parties. This provision shall not be construed as an authorization to assign, transfer, 
hypothecate or pledge this Agreement or delegate duties or responsibilities hereunder, other than as 
provided above. 
 

3.12. Severability. If any part of this Agreement is determined to be unenforceable, invalid, or 
beyond the authority of either Party to enter into or carry out, then such determination shall not affect the 
validity of the remainder of this Agreement which shall continue in full force and effect; provided that, 
the remainder of this Agreement can, absent the excised portion, be reasonably interpreted to give effect 
to the intentions of the Parties. 
 

3.13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts and shall 
become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by both of the Parties, each 
counterpart shall be deemed an original, but all counterparts together shall constitute a single document. 
 

3.14. Survival. The following provisions in this Agreement shall survive discharge of the 
Agreement: 
 

3.14.a. SPONSOR. As to SPONSOR, the following Sections shall survive discharge: Section 
1.7 (obligation to apply funds to Project), Section 1.8 (obligation to provide copies and retain records), and 
Section 1.9 (obligation to continue to manage Project). 

 
3.14.b. TCAG. As to TCAG, the following Section shall survive discharge: Section 2.3 (right 

to conduct audit). 
 

3.14.c. All Parties. As to all Parties, the following Sections shall survive discharge: Section 
3.3.b. (obligation which survives termination), and Section 3.4. (mutual indemnities). 
 

3.15. Limitation. All obligations of TCAG under the terms of this Agreement are expressly 
contingent upon TCAG’S continued authorization to receive and expend the funds provided by the SB 
125 Program. If for any reason TCAG’S right or ability to receive or expend such funds is terminated or 
suspended in whole or part so that it materially affects TCAG’S ability to fund a Project, then TCAG shall 

17



 
 

Item IV-E-1 

8 

promptly notify SPONSOR, and the Parties shall consult on a course of action. If, after twenty-five (25) 
working days, a course of action is not agreed upon by the Parties, then this Agreement shall be deemed 
terminated by mutual or joint consent of the Parties. Any future obligation to fund a Project or any other 
project or projects of SPONSOR, not already specifically covered by separate Agreement, shall arise only 
upon execution of a new Agreement therefor. 
 

3.16. Time. Time is and shall be of the essence of this Agreement and each and all of its provisions 
in which performance is a factor. 

 
3.17. Remedies Cumulative. No remedy or election of remedies provided for in this Agreement 

shall be deemed exclusive but shall be cumulative with all other remedies at law or in equity. Each 
remedy shall be construed to give the fullest effect allowed by law. 
 

3.18. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. The Parties agree that this contract is made in and 
shall be performed in Tulare County, California.  
 

3.19. Captions. The captions in this Agreement are for convenience only and are not a part of this 
Agreement. The captions do not in any way limit or amplify the provisions of this Agreement and shall 
not affect the construction or interpretation of any of its provisions. 

 
3.20. No Continuing Waiver. The waiver by either Party of any breach of any of the provisions of 

this Agreement shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same, 
or of any other provision of this Agreement. 

 
3.21. No Rights in Third Parties. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to 

confer any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any third party, nor is anything in 
this Agreement intended to relieve or discharge the obligation or liability of any third party to any Party 
to this Agreement, nor shall any provision of this Agreement give any third party any right of subrogation 
or action over or against any Party to this Agreement. 

 
3.22. Exhibits and Recitals. The Recitals and Exhibits to this Agreement are fully incorporated into 

and are integral parts of this Agreement. 
 
3.23. Signatory’s Warranty. Each Party warrants to each other that it is fully authorized and 

competent to enter into this Agreement in the capacity indicated by that Party’s signature below and 
agrees to be bound by this Agreement as of the day and year first mentioned above upon the execution of 
this Agreement by each other Party. 
 
 
 
 

18



 
 

Item IV-E-1 

9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Parties have executed this Agreement on the day and 
year first written above. 

 
TULARE COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS ATTEST: 
 
 
By: ___________________________    By: ___________________________ 
 Chair of TCAG      TCAG Executive Director 
 Governing Board 
 
    
TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY 
 
By: __________________________    ATTEST: 
 Chair of TCRTA  
 Governing Board      By: _________________________ 

        TCRTA Interim Executive Director 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
OFFICE OF TULARE COUNTY COUNSEL 
 
By: __________________________     By: __________________________ 

Deputy        Counsel for SPONSOR 
Counsel for TCAG 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JLK/10-21-2024/20241704/2259178.docx    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 
 

Item IV-E-1 

10 

APPENDIX 
 
 

BUDGET ACT OF 2023 
SB 125 FORMULA-BASED TRANSIT 

AND INTERCITY RAIL CAPITAL 
PROGRAM & 

ZERO EMISSION TRANSIT 
CAPITAL PROGRAM 

 
 
 
 

FINAL GUIDELINES 
 
 
 
 

SEPTEMBER 29, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

20



September 29, 2023 

 
 

Item IV-E-1 

 

SB125 FINAL GUIDELINES – FORMULAIC FUNDING 
 
 
 

Contents 
 

1 Authority and Purpose................................................................................................................................... 2 
 

2 Objectives ...................................................................................................................................................... 3 
 

3 Eligible Recipients and Funding Distribution................................................................................................. 4 
 

4 Schedule ........................................................................................................................................................ 7 
 

5 Eligible Projects.............................................................................................................................................. 8 
 

6 Requirements for Funding Allocations ........................................................................................................ 11 
 

7 Approval and Programming ........................................................................................................................ 20 
 

8 Project Delivery and Reporting .................................................................................................................... 21 
 

9 Project Administration................................................................................................................................. 22 
 

Attachment 1: CCI Funding Guidelines for Administering Agencies................................................................... 23 
Investments to Benefit Disadvantaged Communities and Low-Income Communities and Households ....... 23 

 

Attachment 2: Quantification Methodology and Co-Benefit Assessment Methodology................................... 24 
CCI Quantification and Reporting Materials ................................................................................................... 24 

 

Attachment 3: Benefit Criteria Tables ................................................................................................................ 26 
CCI Benefit Criteria Tables .............................................................................................................................. 26 

21



September 29, 2023 

2 Item IV-E-1 

 

 

1 Authority and Purpose 
 

The Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP) was created by Senate Bill (SB) 862 (Chapter 36, 
Statutes of 2014) and modified by SB 9 (Chapter 710, Statutes of 2015), to provide grants from the 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF) to fund transformative capital improvements that will modernize 
California’s intercity, commuter, and urban rail systems, and bus and ferry transit systems, to significantly 
reduce emissions of greenhouse gases, vehicle miles traveled, and congestion. The legislation of these bills 
is codified in Sections 75220 through 75225 of the Public Resources Code (PRC). Assembly Bill (AB) 398 
(Chapter 135, Statutes of 2017) extended the Cap-and-Trade Program that supports the TIRCP from 2020 
through 2030. SB 1 (Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017) continues to provide a historic funding increase for 
transportation with funds directed to the TIRCP from the Public Transportation Account (PTA). 

 

AB 102 (Chapter 38, Statutes of 2023) and SB 125 (Chapter 54, Statutes of 2023) amended the Budget Act of 
2023 to appropriate $4,000,000,000 of General Fund to the TIRCP over the next two fiscal years as well as 
$910,000,000 of GGRF funding and $190,000,000 of PTA funding over the next four fiscal years to establish the 
Zero-Emission Transit Capital Program (ZETCP). These guidelines are specifically developed to facilitate the 
award of these funds to projects in an expeditious manner. 

 

These guidelines include elements of the policy, standards, criteria, and procedures for the 
development, adoption, evaluation and administration of the TIRCP last updated for Cycle 6 (which 
delivered its last tranche of funding for project awards in July 2023) but are unique to this particular 
cycle of TIRCP funding. In allowing the funds covered by these guidelines to be available for operating 
costs, the guidelines are also required to be aligned with the legislative intent described in subdivision 
(d) of Section 75226 of, and subdivision (f) of Section 75260, of the Public Resources Code. They will be 
further informed by input received through workshops, public comments and written responses to be 
received by September 14, 2023. 

 

SB 125 provided additional direction with regards to the funding appropriated in the Budget Act of 
2023. It created specific categories for funding as follows: 

 

A)   $3,995,000,000 over the next two fiscal years shall be distributed pursuant to a population-based 
formula to regional transportation planning agencies (RTPA) as defined in Section 7 of these 
guidelines. The bill authorizes RTPAs to use the moneys for high-priority transit capital projects 
consistent with the uses allowed in Cycle 6 of the TIRCP, which includes existing projects seeking to 
maintain or obtain federal or local funding commitments, project development for major projects 
that are seeking to enter or have already entered project development with federal partners, or for 
new TIRCP projects. As in Cycle 6, all capital projects must both increase ridership and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions, in common with traditional TIRCP project requirements. The funding 
may also be used to fund transit operating expenses that prevent service cuts and increase ridership 
for operators within the RTPAs jurisdiction, subject to compliance with requirements and further 
detail described in Section 6 of these guidelines. 

 

B)   $1,100,000,000 over the next four fiscal years shall be for the establishment of the Zero-Emission 
Transit Capital Program (ZETCP) and requires funds under the program to be allocated to RTPAs 
pursuant to a population-based formula and another formula based on transit operator revenues 
within the jurisdiction of these RTPAs, as specified (the formula described is consistent with the 
current State Transit Assistance formula). The bill authorizes RTPAs to use the moneys for zero- 
emission transit equipment, including, but not limited to, zero-emission vehicles and refueling 
infrastructure and, subject to compliance with requirements described in Section 6 of these 
guidelines, to use those moneys to fund transit operating expenditures that prevent service 
reduction or elimination in order to maintain or increase ridership. 

 
 

NOTE: Cycle 7 of TIRCP, funded with the regular GGRF and SB1 sources, is expected to be delayed 
approximately two months from its regular calendar, with a call for projects around December 1, 2023 and 

22



September 29, 2023 

3 Item IV-E-1 

 

applications due around March 1, 2024. The proposed timeline reflects eligible applicant feedback and will 
allow applicants to incorporate the regional choices made under SB 125 when determining what to submit 
to the competitive TIRCP cycle. Based on this timeline, the Program of Projects would be announced 
around June 1, 2024. 

 
 
2 Objectives 

 

The TIRCP was created to fund transformative capital improvements that modernize California’s 
intercity rail, bus (including feeder buses to intercity rail services, as well as vanpool and micro 
transit services that are eligible to report as public transit to the Federal Transit Administration), 
ferry, and rail transit systems (collectively referred to as transit services or systems inclusive of 
all aforementioned modes unless otherwise specified) to achieve all of the following policy 
objectives, as codified in Section 75220(a) of the PRC: 

 

1.   Reduce emissions of greenhouse gases 
2.   Expand and improve transit service to increase ridership 
3.   Integrate the rail service of the state’s various rail operations, including integration with the 

high-speed rail system 
4.   Improve transit safety 

 

Additionally, Section 75221(c) of the PRC codifies a programmatic goal to provide at least 25 percent 
of available funding to projects that provide a direct, meaningful, and assured benefit to 
disadvantaged communities, consistent with the objectives of SB 535. AB 1550 provides further 
requirements related to ensuring investments meet the needs of priority populations, a term used 
to cover disadvantaged communities, low-income communities and low-income households. 
Investments made by TIRCP are expected to collectively meet or exceed the requirements in AB 
1550. Each RTPA will need to provide information related to its projects sufficient to determine 
the nature of priority population benefits; however, there is no minimum requirement that 
each project or RTPA needs to meet for the projects submitted. 

 

Taken as a whole, the increases in transit system ridership, as well as the reduction in vehicle miles 
traveled, congestion and greenhouse gas emissions, will help deliver a healthier and safer 
transportation system. Investments are expected to position the state to lead in the deployment of 
cutting edge and zero emission technologies, test innovative strategies and new approaches to 
reducing transportation-related fatalities, provide important new capacity in corridors that support 
growth in jobs and housing, and to expand multimodal transportation access and options for all 
Californians across all regions of the state. 

 

Further, as outlined in SB 125, which amended the Budget Act of 2023, it is the intent of the 
Legislature to: 

 

(1)  provide one-time multiyear bridge funding for transit operators to address operational costs 
until long-term transit sustainability solutions are identified 

 

(2)  assist transit operators in preventing service cuts and increasing ridership 
 

(3)  prioritize the availability of transit for riders who are transit dependent 
 

(4)  prioritize transit agencies representing a significant percentage of the region’s ridership 
 

To that end, SB 125 specifies that the moneys appropriated in the Budget Act of 2023 may be used 
for high-priority transit capital projects within the project eligibility categories allowed under TIRCP 
in Cycle 6, and also for transit operating expenses for operators within the RTPAs jurisdiction. 
Further detail on the definition of transit operator is included in Section 3. 

23



September 29, 2023 

4 Item IV-E-1 

 

 
 
 

3 Eligible Recipients and Funding Distribution 
 

The first year of funding for TIRCP and the ZETCP is already available for distribution once required 
materials are submitted and must be fully encumbered or expended and liquidated by CalSTA by June 30, 
2028. FY23-24 funds for TIRCP and the ZETCP must be disbursed to RTPAs by this deadline. Once received 
by the RTPA there is no deadline for the expenditure of funds. 

 

TIRCP funding will be allocated in both FY23-24 and FY24-25 to RTPAs according to a population-based 
formula after each recipient first receives $300,000 of base funding. 

 

The $410 million of first year ZETCP funding (from both PTA and GGRF sources), as well as the $230 million 
for each of the succeeding three years (from GGRF only), will be allocated to RTPAs pursuant to a 
population-based formula and another formula based on transit operator revenues within the jurisdiction 
of these RTPAs. This formula matches the approach used to calculate State Transit Assistance distribution. 

 

Eligible recipients of funding are the RTPAs, as defined in Section 13987(j) of the Government Code. The 
current eligible recipients based on that definition and initial fund estimates by expected recipient are as 
follows: 

 
 

A B C D E F G 

RTPA Year 1 TIRCP Year 2 TIRCP Year 1 ZETCP 
(53.66% GGRF, 
46.34% PTA) 

Years 2-4 ZETCP 
(per yr, 100% 
GGRF) 

Grand Total 
(B+C+D+(E*3)) 

Maximum Admin 
Share 

Metropolitan 
Transportation 
Commission 

$385,068,697 $386,040,188 $149,679,519 $83,966,559 $1,172,688,081 $5,000,000 

Alpine County 
Transportation 
Commission 

$360,641 $360,794 $6,740 $3,781 $739,518 $25,000 

Amador County 
Transportation 
Commission 

$2,336,465 $2,341,606 $218,158 $122,381 $5,263,373 $52,634 

Butte County 
Association of 
Governments 

$10,488,545 $10,514,269 $1,113,156 $624,454 $23,989,331 $239,893 

Calaveras County 
Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$2,576,611 $2,582,360 $238,532 $133,811 $5,798,936 $57,989 

Colusa County Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$1,402,047 $1,404,830 $119,153 $66,842 $3,126,556 $31,266 

Del Norte County 
Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$1,675,501 $1,678,974 $149,752 $84,007 $3,756,247 $37,562 

El Dorado County 
Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$9,085,857 $9,108,041 $971,781 $545,145 $20,801,115 $208,011 

Tahoe Regional 
Planning Agency 

$5,753,283 $5,767,052 $596,916 $334,855 $13,121,818 $131,218 

Fresno County 
Council of 
Governments 

$51,406,113 $51,535,149 $6,249,069 $3,505,575 $119,707,058 $1,197,071 

Glenn County Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$1,752,922 $1,756,591 $154,691 $86,778 $3,924,537 $39,245 

Humboldt County 
Association of 
Governments 

$7,130,906 $7,148,153 $825,047 $462,831 $16,492,599 $164,926 

24



September 29, 2023 

5 Item IV-E-1 

 

 

Imperial County 
Transportation 
Commission 

$9,362,644 $9,385,526 $1,027,524 $576,416 $21,504,942 $215,049 

Inyo County Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$1,259,080 $1,261,501 $99,284 $55,696 $2,786,952 $27,870 

Kern Council of 
Governments 

$46,278,687 $46,394,777 $5,050,974 $2,833,473 $106,224,857 $1,062,249 

Kings County 
Association of 
Governments 

$7,982,701 $8,002,098 $827,175 $464,025 $18,204,049 $182,040 

Lake County/City 
Council of 
Governments 

$3,706,510 $3,715,111 $370,593 $207,894 $8,415,895 $84,159 

Lassen County Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$1,829,937 $1,833,800 $165,103 $92,619 $4,106,698 $41,067 

Los Angeles County 
Metropolitan 
Transportation 
Authority 

$498,650,905 $499,909,177 $119,494,973 $67,033,765 $1,319,156,350 $5,000,000 

Madera County 
Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$8,254,231 $8,274,315 $850,825 $477,292 $18,811,248 $188,112 

Mariposa County 
Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$1,161,396 $1,163,571 $91,799 $51,497 $2,571,256 $25,713 

Mendocino Council 
of Governments 

$4,848,229 $4,859,713 $505,296 $283,459 $11,063,615 $110,636 

Merced County 
Association of 
Governments 

$14,669,424 $14,705,704 $1,558,919 $874,515 $33,557,593 $335,576 

Modoc County 
Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$739,160 $740,269 $49,336 $27,676 $1,611,794 $25,000 

Mono County Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$976,126 $977,834 $171,629 $96,279 $2,414,427 $25,000 

Transportation 
Agency for 
Monterey County 

$22,218,449 $22,273,790 $2,975,692 $1,669,291 $52,475,803 $524,758 

Nevada County 
Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$5,416,406 $5,429,324 $554,558 $311,093 $12,333,568 $123,336 

Orange County 
Transportation 
Authority 

$160,108,526 $160,512,022 $22,473,788 $12,607,247 $380,916,076 $3,809,161 

Placer County 
Transportation 
Planning Agency 

$16,356,936 $16,397,478 $1,900,006 $1,065,857 $37,851,991 $378,520 

Plumas County 
Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$1,257,263 $1,259,680 $114,463 $64,211 $2,824,038 $28,240 

Riverside County 
Transportation 
Commission 

$123,382,700 $123,693,468 $14,828,290 $8,318,309 $286,859,385 $2,868,594 

Sacramento Area 
Council of 
Governments 

$100,321,824 $100,574,367 $13,907,018 $7,801,498 $238,207,702 $2,382,077 

Council of San 
Benito County 
Governments 

$3,609,072 $3,617,427 $348,002 $195,221 $8,160,164 $81,602 

San Bernardino 
County 
Transportation 

$110,856,746 $111,135,888 $13,864,934 $7,777,890 $259,191,238 $2,591,912 

25



September 29, 2023 

6 Item IV-E-1 

 

 

Authority       

San Diego 
Association of 
Governments 

$48,212,817 $48,333,791 $6,181,044 $3,467,415 $113,129,896 $1,131,299 

San Diego 
Metropolitan 
Transit System 

$118,515,843 $118,814,323 $17,265,263 $9,685,392 $283,651,604 $2,836,516 

San Joaquin Council 
of Governments 

$39,935,609 $40,035,684 $5,031,810 $2,822,723 $93,471,271 $934,713 

San Luis Obispo 
Area Council of 
Governments 

$14,486,636 $14,522,455 $1,569,547 $880,477 $33,220,070 $332,201 

Santa Barbara 
County Association 
of Governments 
(SBCAG) 

$22,796,994 $22,853,796 $2,916,400 $1,636,030 $53,475,278 $534,753 

Santa Cruz County 
Transportation 
Commission 

$13,771,188 $13,805,201 $2,649,968 $1,486,567 $34,686,060 $346,861 

Shasta Regional 
Transportation 
Agency 

$9,423,391 $9,446,427 $993,316 $557,226 $21,534,813 $215,348 

Sierra County Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$463,183 $463,595 $17,533 $9,836 $973,818 $25,000 

Siskiyou County 
Local 
Transportation 
Commission 

$2,515,009 $2,520,601 $239,061 $134,108 $5,676,994 $56,770 

Stanislaus Council 
of Governments 

$28,068,044 $28,138,155 $3,037,849 $1,704,159 $64,356,526 $643,565 

Tehama County 
Transportation 
Commission 

$3,587,498 $3,595,798 $347,323 $194,840 $8,115,139 $81,151 

Trinity County 
Transportation 
Commission 

$1,109,747 $1,111,791 $86,567 $48,562 $2,453,791 $25,000 

Tulare County 
Association of 
Governments 

$24,305,505 $24,366,115 $2,748,056 $1,541,592 $56,044,453 $560,445 

Tuolumne County 
Transportation 
Council 

$3,094,210 $3,101,265 $296,569 $166,368 $6,991,148 $69,911 

Ventura County 
Transportation 
Commission 

$42,429,785 $42,536,157 $5,066,998 $2,842,463 $98,560,328 $985,603 

 
 

Funding distributions will be only made to the above recipients, utilizing fund transfer instructions 
confirmed with CalSTA by the RTPA prior to transfer, which may in turn make funding available to public 
agencies in their jurisdiction. RTPAs have the discretion to suballocate or distribute funds within their 
region based on local needs, existing procedures, policies or priorities, as long as required SB 125 program 
requirements and goals are met, including addressing how operating needs are expected to be met with 
SB 125 and/or other resources. 

 

For TIRCP and ZETCP capital projects, the RTPAs may distribute funding to public agencies eligible to 
receive TIRCP capital funding, including joint powers agencies, that operate or have planning responsibility 
for existing or planned regularly scheduled intercity or commuter passenger rail service (and associated 
feeder bus service to intercity rail services), urban rail transit service, or bus or ferry transit service 
(including commuter bus, vanpool, and micro transit services). Public agencies include local municipalities 
that operate transit service, construction authorities, transportation authorities, and other similar public 
entities created by statute. Please note that within such capital projects, with the exception of projects that 
are in the federal pipeline for major projects project development, the projects funded must result in 

26



September 29, 2023 

7 Item IV-E-1 

construction being completed, as is required under traditional TIRCP funding. 

For any spending on transit operations to prevent service reduction or elimination in order to maintain or 
increase ridership, or to otherwise increase ridership, the RTPAs may distribute funding to transit 
operators in their jurisdiction that are eligible to receive State Transit Assistance (STA) funding through 
Section 99314 at the time of distribution by the RTPA. Please note that preventing service reduction and 
elimination includes the broad variety of expenses required to provide service, including those related to 
ensuring safety and state of good repair of the vehicles and infrastructure. 

RTPAs may also be the sponsor of capital and operating projects and may partner on projects with the 
agencies eligible to receive funding (such as doing a planning effort tied to making the underlying project 
more beneficial in a regional context upon implementation). 

RTPAs must deposit funds into one or more dedicated bank accounts or custody accounts. Permitted 
investments include bank demand deposits consistent with California government code, government 
money market funds, U.S. Treasuries, U.S. Agency securities, California Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF), and AAA public agency pools, to the extent permitted by RTPA policy and state statute. If a 
separate account is not possible, the agency may show documents of a line item or subaccount dedicated 
to SB 125 funds. Funds will be disbursed separately from each fund source supporting SB 125 (General 
Fund for TIRCP; PTA and GGRF for ZETCP) and identified as such when disbursed. RTPAs are responsible 
for tracking the receipt and utilization of these funds separately, and recording interest earned (or other 
investment income earned) on each fund source separately. The interest or investment earnings must 
also be spent on approved eligible projects within each program and will be accounted for when an 
agency submits its required Annual Report, as described in Section 9. When the recipient agency submits 
its Annual Report, they are required to submit a copy of their most recent bank statement. The additional 
spending made possible by interest or investment earnings shall be approved through submitting an 
Updated Program Allocation Request to CalSTA, which will approve such spending based on review of 
project eligibility. 

RTPAs, transit operators and other public agencies expending SB 125 formula funding assume 
responsibility and accountability for the use and expenditure of allocated funds in accordance with these 
guidelines and applicable statutes. These agencies must also comply with all relevant federal and state 
laws, regulations, policies, and procedures. 

4 Schedule 

CalSTA Publishes 2023 SB 125 Guidelines September 29, 2023 

Optional, time-limited, focused virtual meetings for agencies to 
discuss and clarify program requirements (will be scheduled by 
request)* 

Initial Allocation Package Submittal Due 

October 16-December 8, 2023 

December 31, 2023 

Regionally Compiled Transit Operator Data Due 
Requested Funding Will be Allocated No Later Than 

December 31, 2023 
April 30, 2024 

*Comments and requests for meetings can be submitted to:
SB125transit@calsta.ca.gov

27

mailto:SB125transit@calsta.ca.gov


September 29, 2023 

8 Item IV-E-1 

 

 
 
5 Eligible Projects 

 

TIRCP Funding ($3.995 billion) 
 

In order to be eligible for TIRCP capital project funding under this program, a capital project must demonstrate that 
it will achieve a reduction in greenhouse gas emissions using the relevant sections of the ZETCP Quantification 
Methodology. It must also demonstrate an increase in ridership. 

 

As codified in Section 75221(a) of the PRC, projects eligible for funding under the program include, but are 
not limited to, the following: 

 

1.   Rail capital projects, including intercity rail, commuter rail, light rail, and other fixed guideway 
projects. Additionally, the acquisition of rail cars and locomotives, and the facilities to support them, 
that expand, enhance, and/or improve existing rail systems and connectivity to existing and future 
transit systems, including the high-speed rail system. 

2.   Intercity, commuter, and urban rail projects that increase service levels, improve reliability, or 
decrease travel times, infrastructure access payments to host railroads in lieu of capital investments, 
efforts to improve existing rail service effectiveness with a focus on improved operating agreements, 
schedules, and minor capital investments that are expected to generate increased ridership, as well 
as larger scale projects designed to achieve significantly larger benefits. 

3.   Rail, bus, and ferry integration implementation, including: 
a.    integrated ticketing and scheduling systems and related software/hardware capital 

investments (including, but not limited to, integration with bus or ferry operators and 
the use of contactless payment and General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) 
implementation through Cal-ITP) 

b.   projects enabling or enhancing shared-use corridors (both multi-operator passenger only 
corridors as well as passenger-freight corridors) 

c. related planning efforts focused on, but not limited to, delivery of integrated service not 
requiring major capital investment, such as transit route and schedule integration (or 
coordination) 

d.   other multimodal and service integration initiatives, including active transportation and other 
access investments which increase transit and rail ridership and reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions 

4.   Bus rapid transit and other bus and ferry transit investments (including autonomous fixed 
guideway, vanpool, and micro transit services operated as public transit and first-/last-mile 
solutions), and to increase ridership and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. This includes large 
scale deployment of zero emission vehicles and the technologies to support them, and capital 
investments as a component implementing transit effectiveness studies that will contribute to 
restructured and enhancedservice. 

 

Grade separations and grade crossing improvements on passenger rail corridors or related to transit 
projects are eligible, as they are under the discretionary TIRCP. In addition to providing safety benefits, 
these projects often provide certain roadway based (and sometimes rail related) greenhouse gas emission 
reductions and a small increase in ridership (tied to reductions in train delays and cancellations tied to 
incidents at the crossing, and sometimes speed increases that occur after crossings are improved or 
eliminated). In some cases, ridership increases from such projects are more significant if they are necessary 
to increase train frequency. 

 

Projects related to mitigating the impacts on freight rail services that are caused by growth in passenger rail 
may also be eligible for TIRCP funding even if they are not directly on the passenger rail corridor. 

 

Projects that link housing with key destinations and that improve accessibility to economic opportunities 
are also eligible for TIRCP funding. 

 

Demonstration projects that are smaller-scale efforts with great potential to be expanded are eligible for 

28



September 29, 2023 

9 Item IV-E-1 

 

funding. 
 

Projects may include new approaches to attracting increased ridership such as smart phone mobile ticketing, 
contactless payment, or other software and hardware solutions to reduce ticketing transaction costs, or a 
test of a concept related to integrated ticketing, as well as intercity rail/transit effectiveness or operational 
planning as a component of the capital investments in improved, expanded and/or restructured service 
designed to cost-effectively increase ridership. Research, development, and testing of emerging technologies 
are eligible components. Clean fleet, facility and network improvement projects may also request funding 
for Zero Emission Mobility Programs, in lieu of Zero Emission Vehicle purchase, in compliance with 
Innovative Clean Transit Regulation Section 2023.5. 

 

Many TIRCP applicants have met the requirements for reducing greenhouse gas emissions and increasing 
ridership through combining related capital investments that may individually address only one or the other 
benefit. Many TIRCP applicants have also augmented their chosen capital projects with key network 
integration planning studies that consider how to enhance the benefits of their projects (in connecting to 
other transit and rail systems), or planning efforts that consider a later phase of capital investment and the 
benefits it will bring to the current proposed project when constructed at a later date. 

 

Agencies may apply to TIRCP Cycle 7 or later for projects that use SB 125 resources for new projects, either 
to complete project funding or to expand project scope; SB 125 funding will be counted as matching funds 
in future TIRCP discretionary grant applications. Additional guidance will be provided in the TIRCP Cycle 7 
guidelines. 

 

Additionally, RTPAs may suballocate funds to agencies in their jurisdiction so agencies may use this funding 
to support projects that have previously received a TIRCP award and require an additional infusion of 
resources to deliver the original scope. RTPAs may also allocate funding to any project awarded funds in 
Cycle 6 that pledged to use future TIRCP formula funds as match, in accordance with the direction provided 
in the Cycle 6 guidelines. RTPAs may assume that any funding from these SB 125 resources will help obtain 
or maintain funds from federal, state and local sources already committed to the projects, and document 
this benefit for their own projects, and require such documentation of benefits from project sponsors for 
other projects, in their Allocation Package submissions. Agencies shall state which project is seeking 
additional funds, identifying the Cycle 1 through 6 project, and whether the funding is needed for the full 
project scope or for a subcomponent. 

 

RTPAs may suballocate funds to agencies in their jurisdiction so agencies may also use this funding for 
project development activities, similar to the “Major Projects Project Development Reserve” that was 
established in the Cycle 6 guidelines, including use of additional funding for projects that received funding 
for such projects in the Cycle 6 awards. While projects and programs of projects do not need to be ready for 
construction, agencies should identify how their project or program of projects will be eligible to apply for 
TIRCP construction funding in the future and what specific federal, state and other funding programs they 
are planning to utilize for construction funding. As in Cycle 6, such projects must either be pursuing Capital 
Investment Grant funding through the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) or be parht of the pursuit of 
Federal Railroad Administration funding through the Corridor Identification Program. Projects not pursuing 
federal funds for construction from FTA or planning to pursue FRA capital funding for construction through 
one of the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law programs are not eligible. Agencies may apply to TIRCP Cycle 7 or 
later for projects that use SB 125 resources for project development; SB 125 funding will be counted as 
matching funds in future TIRCP discretionary grant applications. 

RTPAs that are themselves the capital project sponsor may also utilize funds for their own projects. 

RTPAs are also authorized to use TIRCP moneys, subject to compliance with requirements 
described in Section 6 of these guidelines, to fund transit operating expenses within its jurisdiction 
that prevent service cuts and increase ridership, including those related to ensuring safety and 
state of good repair of the vehicles and infrastructure necessary to operate service, as well as 
those that pay for free and reduced fare programs. Planning expenses related to implementation 
of ridership recovery and retention strategies are also eligible as operating projects, whether at the 

29



September 29, 2023 

10 Item IV-E-1 

 

RTPA or STA-eligible transit operator level. RTPAs that are themselves the operator of transit 
services may also utilize funds for their own operations. Service planning necessary to experiment 
with, demonstrate or implement significant service modifications may be funded as an operating 
expenditure at either the RTPA or transit operator level. 

 

ZETCP Funding ($1.1 billion) 
 

Pursuant to SB 125, zero-emission transit equipment, transit facility and network improvement 
projects such as those that support replacing aging vehicle fleets with Zero-Emission Vehicles 
(ZEVs), and associated fueling or charging infrastructure or facility modifications, are eligible 
projects for the Zero-Emission Transit Capital Program (ZETCP). ZEVs include heavy- and light-rail 
vehicles, buses, and other ZEVs used for transit service. Clean fleet, facility and network 
improvement projects may also request funding for Zero Emission Mobility Programs, in lieu of 
Zero Emission Vehicle purchase, in compliance with Innovative Clean Transit Regulation Section 
2023.5. 

 

GGRF funds used on these projects (53.7% of the first year and 100% of years 2-4) will require 
submission of information described in the ZETCP Quantification Methodology, as expending GGRF 
funds requires benefits reporting. They also require compliance with the CARB Funding Guidelines 
applicable to all GGRF funding, including semi-annual benefits reporting and identification of 
benefits to priority populations. 

 

ZETCP funding may also be used for transit operations expenditures that prevent service reduction or 
elimination in order to maintain or increase transit ridership, in accordance with the provisions described in 
Section 6 of these guidelines, including those related to ensuring safety and state of good repair of the 
vehicles and infrastructure necessary to operate service, as well as those that pay for free and reduced fare 
programs. Planning efforts necessary to implement one or more of the Innovative Clean Transit Plan efforts 
within the region, and planning expenses related to implementation of ridership recovery and retention 
strategies, may be programmed as an operating expense out of the PTA portion of funds disbursed to each 
RTPA, but must be requested in an Allocation Package submission covering the FY23-24 funding year. 

 

A maximum of 1% of total multi-year SB 125 funding, or $5 million, whichever is lower, may be 
programmed by the RTPA for RTPA administration of SB 125 funding across both the TIRCP and ZETCP, and 
for planning expenses related to preparing and implementing the initial short-term financial plan, updates 
to the short-term financial plan, and the long-term financial plan, including planning expenses related to 
implementation of ridership recovery and retention strategies. If less than $25,000 would be available 
under this formula, a maximum of $25,000 shall be available to such RTPAs for RTPA administration and 
planning expenses. As the RTPAs are tasked with developing the regional long-term financial plan for their 
jurisdictions, there is no requirement to program and suballocate funds to transit operators for this 
purpose, although they may do so at their discretion. The RTPAs can procure professional services or use 
their own staff to gather the reports, data and relevant information needed to develop the regional long- 
term financial plan required by SB 125. This request must be made in the Allocation Package submissions 
covering FY 23-24 funding from the ZETCP due on December 31, 2023, as an operating project associated 
with the RTPA, as most funding will be drawn from the Public Transportation Account resources only 
available in that year. If included in the December 31, 2023 submission, funds may be applied to expenses 
incurred at any point in the RTPAs FY23-24 fiscal year, including those incurred prior to receipt of funding, 
subject to RTPA policies that allow such reimbursement. Very small RTPAs may be directed by CalSTA to 
program the balance of funding from 1st year General Fund resources available under TIRCP if there are 
insufficient PTA funds available to meet their requested administrative funding amount. Small RTPAs are 
encouraged to combine planning efforts if feasible. Should RTPAs be part of project-specific project 
management, resources required for those efforts are to be separately identified as part of the funding 
requested for each project, as appropriate. 

30



September 29, 2023 

11 Item IV-E-1 

 

6 Requirements for Funding Allocations 
 

Each RTPA seeking allocation of funding shall complete an Initial Allocation Package by December 31, 
2023. Allocation Packages are encouraged to describe the full four-year plan for use of formulaic funds if 
already known, understanding that each year’s funds are subject to appropriation in the respective 
budget year. However, Allocation Packages are expected to be updated for future years should there be 
any change in funding availability or projects selected for funding distribution. Allocation packages will 
be treated in accordance with Public Records Act requirements and certain information, subject to those 
requirements, may be publicly disclosed. 

 

Each Allocation Package shall include, as applicable, the following: 
 

A.   A signed cover letter, with signature authorizing and approving the request by the eligible RTPA. 
This cover letter should also confirm that the RTPA developed the plan in consultation and 
coordination with its transit operators. 

 

B.   An Allocation Package Narrative Explanation, covering most of the requirements for the regional 
short-term financial plan for immediate service retention required by statue. This narrative 
explanation is required by December 31, 2023, unless the RTPA declares that none of the STA- 
eligible transit operators eligible to receive funding within their jurisdiction will have an operational 
funding need for SB 125 or additional discretionary or nonformula state funding between the 2023- 
24 fiscal year and the 2026-27 fiscal year, inclusive. It also must declare that it will not use the SB 
125 funding as operating funding for any of its STA-eligible transit operators (or its own transit 
operations, when the RTPA also operates transit service). Such declarations may take the place of 
the narrative explanation, if applicable. Even if such declarations are made, the regional Allocation 
Package Narrative Explanation will still be a required submission by December 31, 2024, in order to 
receive a timely allocation of FY24-25 funding from SB 125 sources. 

 

The Allocation Package Narrative Explanation shall include the following: 
 

i.   An explanation of what funding and service actions are being taken within the 
region that utilize resources other than SB125 funding. This explanation 
incorporates the requirement to provide a demonstration of how the region will 
address any operational deficit, using all available funds, through the 2025–26 fiscal 
year, based on a 2022 service baseline. Each plan shall provide narrative and data 
describing the funding approach that addresses expected operational deficits of 
existing STA-eligible transit operators through the 2025-26 fiscal year across all the 
region’s STA-eligible transit operators, including strategies to use all available local, 
state, and federal funds to address such deficits, and the impacts such strategies 
may have on any capital projects. This section shall focus on the approaches the 
region is taking and plans to take before the use of SB 125 funds to mitigate 
operational deficits, both in calendar year 2023 and in future fiscal years through 
the end of FY25-26. When applicable, this should include reference to delay or 
elimination of lower priority capital projects to increase funding for operations, 
utilizing historically high State Transit Assistance funding tied to recent high diesel 
fuel prices, the use of federal transit formula funding made higher through the 
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) for preventative maintenance 
expenditures within the operating budget, or the use of higher Local Transportation 
Fund revenues tied to healthy sales and use tax receipts in certain counties. In some 
cases, strategies involving the use of non-SB 125 funds to increase transit operator 
funding may allow SB 125 funds to target capital needs. If utilized, such strategies 
should be described in this section. To the extent that such deficits cannot be fully 
addressed with available funds and actions, service impacts relative to the 
December 31, 2022 service baseline shall be described. This section shall be 
analyzed and reviewed for completeness. It is understood to be a summary of major 

31



September 29, 2023 

12 Item IV-E-1 

 

actions taken and planned to be taken across the region based on RTPA and/or 
transit operator decision-making. 

 

ii.   A description and justification of the RTPA strategy to use SB 125 funding to 
construct capital projects and fund operating expenses that lead to improved 
outcomes in its jurisdiction. This section shall describe the region’s overall strategy 
for choosing to spend the expected SB 125 funds on the capital projects and 
operational expenses described in its Allocation Package. This section addresses the 
statutory requirements to provide a justification for how the region’s funding is 
proposed to be allocated to capital and operational expenses and provide a 
demonstration of how the plan will mitigate service cuts, fare increases, or layoffs 
relative to a 2022 service baseline to achieve short-term financial sustainability. This 
section shall highlight the specific manner in which SB 125 funding requested for 
operations will reduce or eliminate the need for service cuts, fare increases or 
layoffs. With recent positive results from efforts designed to increase speed of 
transit services, allowing similar levels of service with lower operating costs or more 
service with the same operating budget, this section of the Allocation Package 
would benefit from describing any such efforts that are proposed for the region and 
transit operators in question. This can include transit-specific infrastructure, stop 
consolidation, or other efforts. In addition, this description addresses the statutory 
requirement to provide a summary of how the plan will support ridership 
improvement strategies that focus on riders, such as coordinating schedules and 
ease of payment and improving cleanliness and safety, to improve the ridership 
experience. Since increasing ridership and the associated fare revenues is one 
approach to strengthening the financial performance of each region’s transit 
operators, this section shall highlight any portion of the capital projects or any 
portion of operating funds that are specifically focused on supporting improvement 
in ridership. This section should also describe any efforts to integrate fares among 
transit agencies in the region or even outside of the region covered by the RTPA. 
This section shall be analyzed and reviewed for completeness. 

 

iii.   A detailed breakdown and justification for how the funding is proposed to be 
distributed between transit operators and among projects, consistent with the 
legislative intent described in SB 125. This section shall include a narrative (and 
appropriate data and tables) describing the justification for the funding distribution 
to each specific operator and project that is requested. If requesting spending for 
transit operations, this section shall address the following items identified in the 
legislative intent language in SB 125: 

 

1.   address operational costs until long-term transit sustainability solutions are 
identified 

 

2.   assist transit operators in preventing service cuts and increasing ridership 
 

3.   prioritize the availability of transit for riders who are transit dependent 
 

4.   prioritize transit agencies representing a significant percentage of the 
region’s ridership 

 

If requesting funding for both capital projects and transit operations, the 
justification for the capital project shall include discussion of the high-priority nature 
of the capital project and the significance of its completion to the region. In most 
cases, existing TIRCP-funded capital projects that are already substantially funded 
and in need of additional resources for completion are expected to be prioritized 
over beginning new projects. This narrative section should address the approach to 
this issue. This section shall be analyzed and reviewed for completeness. 

32



September 29, 2023 

13 Item IV-E-1 

 

 
 

C.   An Allocation Package Detailed Project Description, required of all agencies requesting an 
allocation, regardless of whether they are required to submit a short-term financial plan by the end 
of 2023. This detailed project description covers all projects that are recommended by the RTPA for 
SB 125 funding. It does not need to fully utilize all available funds, as this document may be updated 
on a rolling basis throughout the period covered by SB125 funding as part of an Updated Allocation 
Package submission. However, for timely distribution of FY23-24 funds, this portion of the Allocation 
Package must be submitted by December 31, 2023, and for timely distribution of FY24-25 funds, by 
December 31, 2024. 

 

The detailed project description described above must provide details about how the funding is 
proposed to be distributed between transit operators and among projects, both capital and 
operations. This section shall be analyzed and reviewed for project eligibility and completeness. 

 

The list is divided into three sections, covering TIRCP Capital, ZETCP Capital and Operations Funding. 
Required contents for each are below. 

 

TIRCP Capital 
 

1.   If an agency is requesting allocations for funding for an existing TIRCP project (i.e., a project 
that has received a previous TIRCP grant, including those involving project development for 
major projects), they should identify the title of the project and the TIRCP cycle of award 
(cycles 1-6). They should also identify whether the funds will be used for the full project or for a 
subcomponent. Each project receiving additional funding shall identify the reason for 
additional funds being needed, including cost escalation, additional scope requirements or 
maintaining federal funding commitments. No additional GHG reduction or increased ridership 
benefits are required to request funds for an existing TIRCP project. 

 

2.   If an agency is requesting allocation for funding for new TIRCP-eligible projects, they shall 
include for each requested TIRCP capital project: 

 

a.    A summary or fact sheet (one- to two-page) that includes the following elements: 
 

i.   Implementing agency or agencies 

ii.   Project title 

iii.   Dates for the start and end of each project phase 

iv.   Summary of project scope 

v.   Total project costs, including identification of the amount of funding used for 
project management as budgeted for the agency or agencies involved 
(inclusive of RTPA project management) 

 

vi.   Identification of the source, type and amount of all funding 
 

b.   A detailed project schedule, including the project’s current status, and the completion 
dates of all major delivery milestones. 

 

c. Project Location – provide a map for each of the following: 
 

i.   Project location denoting the project site. Provide a KML file for the project 
with the transit route/project location represented by lines and stops 
represented by points as applicable. 

 

ii.   In addition to showing where housing exists, provide information on housing 
density and planned/zoned/permitted/etc. housing density. This information 
may come from planning documents and/or zoning code if other approaches are 
not readily available. 

33



September 29, 2023 

14 Item IV-E-1 

 

iii.   In addition to illustrating existing employment centers, provide information on 
employment density, mix of employment types, and planned future 
employment land uses. This information may come from planning documents 
and/or zoning code if other approaches are not readily available. 

 

iv.   Planned and existing active transportation infrastructure (what currently exists, 
what is planned, and what would be funded by the project. 

 

d.   An explanation of greenhouse gas reducing features of the project such as project 
components that improve air quality and reduce greenhouse gas emissions along a 
specific corridor, surrounding land use density, housing and employment centers, 
transit- oriented development/sustainable communities strategy projects, active 
transportation infrastructure and other features, to the extent available. For all 
construction projects, agencies are required to submit a copy of the California Air 
Resources Board (CARB) Quantification Methodologies (QMs) and Calculator Tools for 
estimating greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reductions and co-benefits identified in 
Attachment 2. 

 

e.   An explanation of expected ridership benefits of the project when constructed, 
including how the project supports better integration of transit services in the region 
among modes and providers if applicable. 

 

f. If applicable, an explanation of how some or all of the project is expected to provide 
direct, meaningful, and assured benefits to a disadvantaged community, low-income 
communities or low-income households as defined by SB 535 and AB 1550. 

 

3.   If agencies plan to use this funding for only project development activities for a new project, 
they are required to show how their project or program of projects will be eligible to apply for 
TIRCP construction funding in the future. If the project would not be eligible to apply for TIRCP 
as a new project, it will not qualify for funding for project development. Agencies shall also 
demonstrate that they have entered into, or have applied to enter into, federal project 
development processes for at least a portion of the project or program of projects, and that 
they expect to receive federal funding in the future once complete with project development. 
If the agency expects to be able to leverage state funding to provide the match necessary to 
obtain federal planning funds, this should also be identified. The required detail for project 
development only is as follows: 

 

a.    A summary or fact sheet (one- to two-page) that includes the following elements: 
 

i.   Implementing agency or agencies 

ii.   Project title 

iii.   Dates for the start and end of each project development phase, as well as the 
anticipated date of construction 

 

iv.   Summary of overall project scope for the constructed project, with an 
emphasis on project development scope 

 

v.   Total project costs for project development, and an estimate of the fully 
constructed project cost if available 

 

vi.   Identification of the source, type and amount of all funding for the project 
development phase and intended funding for the construction phase 

 

b.   A detailed project schedule for the project development phase, including the project’s 
current status, and the completion dates of all major delivery milestones. 

 

c. Description and map designating the project location 

34



September 29, 2023 

15 Item IV-E-1 

 

d.   An explanation of greenhouse gas reducing features of the project such as project 
components that improve air quality and reduce greenhouse gas emissions along a 
specific corridor, surrounding land use density, housing and employment centers, 
transit- oriented development/sustainable communities strategy projects, active 
transportation infrastructure and other features, to the extent available. No GHG 
emissions reduction quantification is required, but can be acknowledged, if available. 

 

e.   An explanation of expected ridership benefits of the project when constructed, 
including how the project supports better integration of transit services in the region 
among modes and providers if applicable. 

 

f. If applicable, an explanation of how some or all of the project is expected to provide 
direct, meaningful, and assured benefits to a disadvantaged community, low-income 
communities or low-income households as defined by SB 535 and AB 1550. 

 

ZETCP Capital 
 

If an agency is requesting allocation for funding for ZETCP capital projects, they shall include for 
each requested ZETCP capital project: 

 

a.    A summary or fact sheet (one- to two-page) that includes the following elements: 
 

i.   Implementing agency or agencies 

ii.   Project title 

iii.   Dates for the start and end of each project phase 

iv.   Summary of project scope 

v.   Total project costs, including identification of the amount of funding used for 
project management as budgeted for the agency or agencies involved 
(inclusive of RTPA project management) 

 

vi.   Identification of the source, type and amount of all funding 
 

b.   A detailed project schedule, including the project’s current status, and the completion 
dates of all major delivery milestones. 

 

c. Project Location – provide a map for each of the following, where relevant: 
 

i.   Project location denoting the project site. Provide a KML file showing project 
location(s) and impacted transit lines. 

 

ii.   In addition to showing where housing exists, provide information on housing 
density and planned/zoned/permitted/etc. housing density. This information 
may come from planning documents and/or zoning code if other approaches are 
not readily available. 

 

iii.   In addition to illustrating existing employment centers, provide information on 
employment density, mix of employment types, and planned future 
employment land uses. This information may come from planning documents 
and/or zoning code if other approaches are not readily available. 

 

iv.   Planned and existing active transportation infrastructure. 
 

d.   An explanation of greenhouse gas reducing features of the project. For all construction 
projects, agencies are required to submit a copy of the California Air Resources Board 
(CARB) Quantification Methodologies (QMs) and Calculator Tools for estimating 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emission reductions and co-benefits identified in Attachment 2. 

e.   At the time of the Allocation Package submission, applicants are required to submit a job 
co-benefit modeling tool, which is based upon a co-benefit assessment methodology 

35



September 29, 2023 

16 Item IV-E-1 

 

developed by CARB. This tool can be found here: 
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/cci-methodologies 

f. An explanation of how some or all of the project is expected to provide direct, meaningful, 
and assured benefits to a disadvantaged community, low-income communities or low- 
income households as defined by SB 535 and AB 1550. Agencies must evaluate the criteria 
detailed by CARB (see Attachment 1) and complete the CARB benefit criteria table in 
Attachment 3, to determine whether the project meets criteria for providing direct, 
meaningful, and assured benefits to a disadvantaged community, low-income community, 
and/or low- income households and address a community need pursuant the CARB’s 
Funding Guidelines, and document the manner in which all or part of the project does so. If 
an agency plans to engage in additional efforts to consult with disadvantaged or low- 
income stakeholders as part of project development, a specific task and budget for the 
proposed activities should be included in the project application. 

i.   It is a goal of programs using GGRF resources to maximize benefits to disadvantaged 
communities and low-income communities and households. Pursuant to the 
requirements of SB 535, as amended by AB 1550, the overall California Climate 
Investments Program funded with Cap-and-Trade auction proceeds must result in: 
(1) a minimum of 25% of the available moneys in the GGRF to projects located 
within, and benefiting individuals living in, disadvantaged communities, (2) an 
additional minimum of 5% to projects that benefit low-income households or to 
projects located within, and benefiting individuals living in, low- income 
communities located anywhere in the state, and (3) an additional minimum 
of 5% either to projects that benefit low-income households that are outside of, but 
within a 1/2 mile of, disadvantaged communities, or to projects located within the 
boundaries of, and benefiting individuals living in, low-income communities that are 
outside of, but within a 1/2 mile of, disadvantaged communities. 

ii.   Information on California Climate Investments to Benefit Disadvantaged 
Communities with background on SB 535, AB 1550 and the CalEPA California 
Communities Environmental Health Screening Tool 4.0 (CalEnviroScreen), can be 
found at: https://calepa.ca.gov/EnvJustice/GHGInvest/ 

 
 

g. Identification of whether the entire project, or only certain components, address AB 
1550 benefits, and identification of the portion of the budget related to those 
components. 

 

h.   An explanation of expected ridership benefits of the project when constructed, if any. 
 

Transit Operations Funding 
 

If an agency is requesting an allocation of funding for transit operations for one or more of the STA- 
eligible transit operators in its jurisdiction, it shall include the following information for each 
operator covered by its request: 

 

1.   Name of Transit Operator 
 

2.   2022-23 Ridership for the Operator and Operator’s Percent of Region’s Total Ridership 
 

3.   Amount of Funding Requested, by source (TIRCP or ZETCP) and Budget Year 
 

4.   List of Specific Activities Funded by the Request, quantified where possible: 
 

a.    Amount of service being paid for by the additional funding expressed in both 
revenue service hours and by nature of service retention, restoration or 
increase invested in (e.g. preventing a reduction in frequency on one or more 
routes (or systemwide), frequency increases on particular routes or launch of 
new routes made possible by the funds). Costs involved in maintaining current 

36

https://calepa.ca.gov/EnvJustice/GHGInvest/


September 29, 2023 

17 Item IV-E-1 

 

operations may include those necessary for ensuring safety and state of good 
repair of the vehicles and infrastructure necessary to operate service and shall 
be identified with respect to the current service level they are protecting. In 
some regions, a different STA-eligible operator may be better able to 
implement increased or restored service levels than the original operator. This 
flexibility is allowed and should be noted in the project description when 
utilized. 

 

b.   Identification of operating expenses invested in increased safety and security 
measures 

 

c. Identification of operating expenses that are intended to increase ridership, 
including those that fund actions to improve coordination of routes and 
schedules 

 

5.   Identification of benefits to transit dependent riders of activities funded by the request 
 

D.   A summary Excel table including the proposed uses of TIRCP and ZETCP funds by fiscal year of 
availability, up to the levels presented in Section 3 above. Uses shall be subdivided between funding 
for capital projects and funding for operations expenses, with each project and its implementing 
agency specifically identified, and each operator that will receive operations funding also specifically 
identified. An Excel template to be used in submitting this required information will be available on 
the CalSTA website within the Subject Area page dedicated to SB125 Funding. This table should 
contain data that matches the information submitted in the Allocation Package Detailed Project 
Description. The data table shall indicate the funding year from which funds are encumbered to the 
project or operating expense by the RTPA. Actual expenditure of funds may be in that year or a 
future year, as necessary for the project or operation. 

 

E.   Agencies must also submit regionally representative transit operator data in coordination with 
transit operators providing service within the jurisdiction of the regional transportation planning 
agency. Regionally representative operator data is expected to include all State Transit Assistance- 
receiving agencies that are also direct reporters to the National Transit Database (NTD), as well as 
any additional agencies that are expected to receive either operating or capital project funding from 
the SB 125 funds. Exceptions are noted below. This data collection is aligned with some of the 
expected data needs for the Transit Transformation Task Force.  For agencies to receive an 
allocation of funds in the 2023-24 fiscal year, the transit operator data must be submitted by 
December 31, 2023. CalSTA and Caltrans will review the data submissions for completeness, 
understanding the quality of the data may vary between operators. RTPAs are not required to 
confirm the data accuracy compiled from their transit operators. If the transit operator data does 
not meet the following requirements or is incomplete, agencies will have an opportunity to remedy 
their submission and receive access to the funding after the requirements are met, by no later than 
April 30, 2024. The regionally representative transit operator data shall include, but is not limited to: 

 

i.   Existing fleet and asset management plans by transit operators. Innovative Clean 
Transit Plan developed for CARB will be considered an already-responsive 
component of this requirement. Operators that are required to submit Asset 
Information Module data to the FTA’s National Transit Database (whether on their 
own or as part of a group plan) should confirm the last time period for which data 
was submitted, and whether they submitted their data as part of a group plan. If 
such data is already submitted to the NTD by Caltrans, the most recent submission 
should be noted and referenced. If the STA-eligible transit operators within an 
RTPA’s jurisdiction have operator-specific fleet and/or asset management plans 
developed for their own management purposes, or for compliance with FTA Capital 
Investment Program requirements, the most recent version of such plans should be 
submitted. 

37



September 29, 2023 

18 Item IV-E-1 

 

ii.   Revenue collection methods and annual costs involved in collecting revenue for 
each transit operator and regional transportation planning agency involved, by 
payment instrument. The methods (payment instruments) of revenue collection 
should be noted and described for all operators covered by the data submission 
requirements, including reference to use of cash fareboxes, transit passes and 
tickets available for sale at different locations and in different media, use of mobile 
ticketing and/or use of smart cards or contactless payment. Information on revenue 
collection costs shall also be submitted for those operators or regional agencies that 
are able to identify specific costs in their operating or capital budgets associated 
with such revenue collection costs. Annual cost should be related to annual revenue 
for each STA-eligible transit operator that has relevant data to report. For operators 
that have no identifiable expenses and are not NTD reporters, fare revenues shall 
still be submitted for the most recent fiscal year in question. For regional agencies 
that have revenue collection costs without collecting fare revenues directly, the 
revenue collection costs should be reported by payment instrument, along with an 
indication of which operators are served by such revenue collection efforts. 

 

1.   The dataset shall include, for each transit operator or regional 
transportation planning agency involved in revenue collection (as 
applicable): 

 

a.    Total cost of revenue collection and total revenue collected for the 
most recent fiscal year 

 

b.   Cost of revenue collection by payment instrument (where available, 
even if only for certain instruments and not all) and total revenue 
collected by those same payment instruments, for the most recent 
fiscal year. 

 

2.   Planned capital costs related to fare collection in the next 4 years, if any are 
planned (including those within expected transit vehicle or other 
procurements). 

 

iii.   A statement of existing service plan and planned service changes through the end 
of 2023-24, and schedule data in General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) format. 
The goal of this data submission is to provide up to date representation of schedules 
by transit operator. Nearly all transit agencies of the state are providing their data in 
GTFS format on a regular basis, and are required to start doing so by FTA regulations 
by 2024. Such data is already visible to the public and to state agencies as indicated 
below. Compliance with these statutory requirements may be met by each operator 
confirming that their current schedule data is correct (an accurate representation of 
the service that the customer will see in operation), and that future service changes 
will be translated into an updated GTFS format on a timely basis. If a service change 
is planned during FY 23-24, an estimated date for submission of GTFS data should be 
indicated. 

 

A brief summary of the existing service plan and changes to the levels of service 
planned by operator, at a level that is representative of the larger planned changes 
but does not need to cover minor changes, shall accompany the allocation package. 
Major frequency changes, or addition or discontinuance of routes, should be 
reflected, but not minor routing or scheduling changes. In addition, changes in total 
amount of revenue service hours planned for this current fiscal year shall be 
reported, along with the timeframe for such a change. 

 

1.  Existing service is assumed to have been described in the agencies 
most recent GTFS feed / GTFS Realtime feed. A list of agencies and 

38



September 29, 2023 

19 Item IV-E-1 

 

associated 

39



September 29, 2023 

20 Item IV-E-1 

 

feeds can be found at https://data.ca.gov/dataset/cal-itp-gtfs-ingest- 
pipeline-dataset/resource/e4ca5bd4-e9ce-40aa-a58a-3a6d78b042bd. If this 
is in error, please contact hello@calitp.org. More general information 
specific to reporting in GTFS may be found at  https://dot.ca.gov/cal- 
itp/california-minimum-general-transit-feed-specification-gtfs-guidelines. 

 

2.   For the proposed service plan, the ideal format is a GTFS feed, representing, 
at a minimum, proposed weekday, Saturday and Sunday service, planned 
scenario. Otherwise, we will accept frequency or new line-based changes. 
(i.e., line X goes from every 20 minutes to every 10 minutes during peak 
periods, defined as 6am-9am and 4pm to 7pm). 

 

3.   The phasing plan for any proposed service changes. 
 

iv.   Expenditures on security and safety measures. This data should be submitted by 
those agencies that have current or changed levels of expenditure that are specific 
to security (including cybersecurity) and safety measures, if applicable to the agency 
or operators covered by the report. This information is expected to highlight those 
regions and agencies that are expending significant funding, in order to consider this 
in the context of the Transit Transformation Task Force and to consider the role such 
spending may play in restoring and increasing ridership. Not all agencies and 
operators are expected to have specific data in this area. 

 

v.   Opportunities for service restructuring, eliminating service redundancies, and 
improving coordination amongst transit operators, including, but not limited to, 
consolidation of agencies or reevaluation of network management and 
governance structure. RTPAs with efforts involving these activities across their 
region or involving specific operators shall provide a summary of the opportunities 
they are pursuing or have acted upon, including any reports on such opportunities. 

 
 

Technical assistance in addressing the required contents of the Initial Allocation Package and any future 
updates may be requested by emailing the SB 125 e-mail address at SB125transit@calsta.ca.gov. 
Assistance may be provided by CalSTA, Caltrans or CARB, depending on the nature of the specific 
question. 

 
Applicants are reminded that while initial allocation packages are due by December 31, 2023, they may 
submit updates to such packages on a rolling basis that CalSTA anticipates reviewing on a 30- to 60-day 
timeline for approval of additional allocations of funding, up to the limit available for the RTPA at the 
relevant point in the program. 

 
RTPAs are also required to make publicly available (i.e., posted online) a summary of monthly ridership 
data, consistent with the data submitted to the FTA’s NTD, from all its transit operators and should cover 
the time period starting on July 1, 2022, through at least June 30, 2028. The monthly reports should 
include ridership data for each mode of public transportation service that the agency operates. This 
information will provide the public with monthly trends in ridership and service supplied throughout the 
year, and also allow for a comparison of ridership recovery compared to this same time last year. 
Caltrans will provide all RTPAs with a summary report each month that meets the requirements of this 
statutory provision, drawn from the data reported to the National Transit Database. The data will be 
drawn from the NTD at:  Complete Monthly Ridership (with adjustments and estimates) | FTA (dot.gov). 
RTPAs are required to post a link to this report and data in a manner easily accessed by the public, so that 
ridership trends within their region can be easily reviewed, in order to receive approval for their 
allocation packages. For RTPAs with transit operators who do not report monthly data to the NTD, 
Caltrans will include the most recent annual ridership numbers provided to the NTD. RTPAs may publish 

40

mailto:hello@calitp.org
mailto:SB125transit@calsta.ca.gov
https://www.transit.dot.gov/ntd/data-product/monthly-module-adjusted-data-release


September 29, 2023 

21 Item IV-E-1 

 

additional ridership data for agencies that do not report monthly to the NTD at their discretion, in order 
to allow public understanding of the changes in ridership experienced over the SB 125 funding time 
period. 

 
Unrelated to the Allocation Package submissions, agencies are required to submit and receive approval 
of a one-time, long-term financial plan by June 30, 2026, that addresses the approach to sustain the 
region’s transit operations absent additional discretionary or nonformula state funding to maintain 
eligibility for future TIRCP funding in the 2026-27 fiscal year and beyond. This plan will be analyzed and 
reviewed for completeness. 

 
Each long-term financial plan shall include, but is not limited to: 

 

I. Demonstration of the implementation of ridership retention and recovery strategies, including, 
but not limited to, policies that prioritize safety and cleanliness and streamlined coordination 
between transit operators, such as schedule coordination, reduced boarding times, operational 
management, and site sharing, to improve rider experience. 

 

II.   A five-year forecast of operating funding requirements with detail on all sources of funding 
proposed for operations, including any new local and regional funding sources being pursued and 
the progress and improvements implemented since the last submitted regional short-term 
financial plan. 

 

Technical assistance as it relates to the development of long-term financial plans may be offered from 
CalSTA and/or Caltrans. RTPAs are expected to utilize existing plans and documents that address the 
requirements of the long-term financial plan where possible, including the use of supplemental materials 
or addenda that address the long-term plan requirements and reference back to their existing plans as 
applicable. CalSTA analysis and review for completeness will only extend to content required by the 
provision of SB 125. Additional guidance will be developed and articulated in future updates to these 
guidelines, per the legislative intent of SB 125. 

 
 
7 Approval and Programming 

 

Once an agency’s Initial Allocation Package is received, along with verification that monthly ridership data 
as required by statute is available on each regional agency’s website, CalSTA will review and analyze the 
submitted documents for completeness and for project eligibility with a commitment to facilitate these 
funds to projects in an expeditious manner and not infringe on the local decision-making processes that 
determined the specific projects proposed for funding. If all projects are eligible and the documentation is 
complete, CalSTA will notify the RTPA that its package is approved, publish the information on its SB125 
Transit Formula Program subject area page, and authorize disbursement of applied-for funds to the RTPA. If 
Initial Allocation Packages are incomplete, RTPAs will be promptly notified and allowed to address areas of 
incompleteness. If any projects are found to be ineligible, RTPAs will be provided an opportunity to choose 
between ether remedying the ineligible project (or replacing it with another) prior to having the entire 
package approved, or advancing all projects that are eligible and addressing the ineligible project in a future 
Updated Allocation Package. CalSTA will maintain a Program Allocation Report that will incorporate all 
approved projects (both capital and operating) that will be updated in any quarter during which additional 
approvals of Initial Allocation Packages or Updated Allocation Packages have been made. 

 

Agencies are not required to fully apply for all available funding at the time of Initial Allocation Package 
submission. Unrequested monies, or the request to program interest earned on deposited funds that have 
not yet been disbursed to implementing agencies, may be requested in a future Updated Allocation 
Package. If an agency chooses to request previously unrequested funding or reprioritize funding between 
projects (including the addition or deletion of a project from their approved project list), an Updated 
Allocation Package shall be submitted for approval, including a Summary of Changes section immediately 
after the cover letter authorizing submission, and any updates to the project information in the document 

41



September 29, 2023 

22 Item IV-E-1 

 

relative to the request. Such documents will be reviewed and analyzed upon receipt for completeness and 
project eligibility with a commitment to facilitate these funds to projects in an expeditious manner and not 
infringe on the local decision-making processes that determined the specific projects proposed for funding, 
with the approved changes included in the quarterly updates to the Program Allocation Report. Notification 
will be provided to each submitting agency within 30 to 60 days of submission of an Updated Allocation 
Package regardless of whether the next quarterly Program Allocation Plan has been published. 

8 Project Delivery and Reporting 
 

To the extent that recipients specify existing TIRCP projects that already have competitive TIRCP funding 
awards, CalSTA and Caltrans will work with each project sponsor to update project program supplements to 
reflect the use of these supplemental resources on the project under its delegated authority from CalSTA. 
The first year of funding for TIRCP and the ZETCP is already available for distribution once required 
materials are submitted and is expected to be fully encumbered or expended and liquidated by June 30, 
2028. FY23-24 funds for TIRCP and the ZETCP must be disbursed to RTPAs by this deadline. Once received 
by the RTPA there is no deadline for the expenditure of funds. Agencies may spend SB 125 funds in any 
order relative to other state, federal and local funds. 

 
As a condition of ongoing disbursement of requested SB 125 funds, the RTPAs must submit to CalSTA an 
Annual Report documenting the activities and progress made toward implementation of the projects and 
operating expenditures, which includes total SB 125 expenditures to date and total amount remaining. 
Recordkeeping and reporting requirements will apply through the life of the projects. 

 
As previously noted, recipients must deposit funds into a dedicated bank account that will hold only SB 
125 funds. If a separate account is not possible, the agency may show documents of a line item or 
subaccount dedicated to SB 125 funds. These funds must also be spent on eligible projects and will be 
accounted for when an agency submits its required Annual Report. 

A reporting template will be distributed prior to the first annual report being due by December 31, 2024. 

A final delivery report for completed capital projects may also be required, to provide notification of the 
completion of the project and confirmation of its placement into service. Additional guidance may be 
developed and articulated in future updates to these guidelines, per the legislative intent of SB 125, and 
may include the development and distribution of a final delivery report template in the future. 

 

Consistent with CARB’s Funding Guidelines, local agencies are required to report on job co-benefits, in 
addition to all other reporting requirements, for funding associated with the ZETCP. Job co-benefits refer to 
California jobs supported, not created, by California Climate Investments. Jobs supported by California 
Climate Investments include direct, indirect, and induced employment. 

 
At the time of the Allocation Package submission for the ZETCP, agencies are required to submit a job co- 
benefit modeling tool, which is based upon a co-benefit assessment methodology developed by CARB. 
Once an awarded project has been implemented, funding recipients will also be required to report actual 
(not modeled) jobs data via the semi- annual reporting process. Note that these requirements are only for 
the ZETCP and are not necessary for the SB 125 TIRCP funding. Projects accessing funding from the ZETCP 
may also be required to submit reporting information related to greenhouse gas reductions and priority 
population benefits in accordance with the CARB’s Funding Guidelines (see Attachment 1). 

 

Implementing agencies should note that additional Project Outcome Reporting may be required for TIRCP 
or ZETCP capital projects. Caltrans may provide assistance through Cal-ITP on scheduling, real-time 
information and payments to streamline reporting requirements. 

 
The State of California has the right to review project documents and conduct audits during project 
implementation and over the life of the project. Caltrans or another State agency may audit a sample of SB 

42



September 29, 2023 

23 Item IV-E-1 

 

125 projects to evaluate the performance of the project, or compliance with state and federal laws and 
regulations, contract provisions; and program guidelines, and whether project deliverables (outputs) and 
outcomes are consistent with the project scope, schedule, and benefits described in the Allocation Package. 
A report on the projects audited must be submitted by the auditing agency to CalSTA. 

 

In addition, agencies that receive ZETCP funding under this program shall submit a report to CalSTA, no 
later than October 31, 2024, and annually by October 31st of subsequent years, that includes the 
following information: 

 

a.    How much funding is to be used for operating costs, if any. 
 

b.   The number, type, date, and location of zero-emission buses, trains or other vehicles 
purchased, if any. 

 

c. The number, type, date, Open Charge Point Interface (OCPI) data, and location of electric 
charging stations or hydrogen fueling stations purchased and installed, if any. 

 

d.   The nameplate capacity of installed equipment in kilowatts for electric charging stations and 
kilograms per day for hydrogen fueling stations, if any. 

 

e.   The total costs and the source of funding for vehicles and equipment purchased using these 
funds. 

 

Additional guidance related to the ZETCP annual report will be provided at least six months before its 
required submission. 

 

9 Project Administration 
 

Projects awarded funding from SB 125 are expected to document and publicize the TIRCP and ZETCP in 
proper context when developing press releases and board documents, or in hosting public events such 
as project groundbreakings. References should be made to TIRCP, ZETCP, the California State 
Transportation Agency as the program sponsor, and the state programs as fund sources, as applicable, 
in order to ensure transparency regarding the funding of the projects. Additional details may be 
provided. 

 

Agencies must encumber and expend monies consistent with State law and ensure that GGRF monies 
are utilized consistent with the expenditure record submitted by CalSTA and required by SB 1018. A 
determination that use of GGRF monies is not consistent with the expenditure record and does not 
further the purposes of AB 32 may occur during legal proceedings or during an audit or program review 
conducted by the Bureau of State Audits, Department of Finance, a third-party auditor, or CARB. 
Depending on the outcome of those proceedings or review, agencies may be required to return monies 
to the state if expenditures are not consistent with the statutory requirements (such as not furthering 
the purposes of AB 32). 

 

If a short-term financial plan does not meet the content and completeness requirements outlined in 
section 6, or if specific projects described do not meet eligibility requirements, agencies will have an 
opportunity to remedy their plan and receive access to the funding after the requirements are met. 

 

Audits and on-site monitoring can take place at any time at the discretion of CalSTA, without prior 
warning given to the agency. CalSTA has the right to audit the project records, including technical and 
financial data of the Project Applicant, the Implementing Agency, and any consultant or sub-consultants 
at any time after award, during the course of the project and for three years from the date of the final 
closeout of the project, therefore all project records shall be maintained and made available at the time 
of request. 

 

The state may terminate the disbursement of funds if it learns of or otherwise discovers that there are 
allegations supported by reasonable evidence that a violation of any state or federal law or policy by 
the recipient which affects performance of this funding, or any other grant agreement or contract 
entered into with the State. If funding disbursement is terminated, or project approval revoked, the 

43



September 29, 2023 

24 Item IV-E-1 

 

agency may be required to fully or partially repay funds from the TIRCP or ZETCP. 
 
 
Attachment 1: CCI Funding Guidelines for Administering Agencies 
(applies to ZETCP Recipients Using GGRF Funds) 

 
 

Investments to Benefit Disadvantaged Communities and Low-Income Communities and Households 
 

The California Air Resources Board (CARB) released the "Funding Guidelines for Agencies Administering 
California Climate Investments" (Funding Guidelines) on August 30, 2018. 

 
The 2018 Funding Guidelines provide flexibility in implementing a diverse set of investments while 
maintaining transparency of outcomes and ensuring meaningful community benefits from these 
investments. These guidelines align with the Legislature’s priorities found in AB 398 and Fiscal Year (FY) 
2017-18 appropriations. These guidelines reflect the increasingly important role of California Climate 
Investments in facilitating the reduction of greenhouse gases while also reducing air pollution, helping 
communities adapt to the impacts of climate change, and providing meaningful benefits to disadvantaged 
communities, low-income communities, and low-income households (also referred to as “priority 
populations”), among other statutory requirements. 

 
CARB collaborates with agencies that administer California Climate Investments programs to develop 
individual targets for each program to drive investments that achieve direct and meaningful benefits 
to  priority populations and help ensure that  statutory requirements are met, which are described in AB 
1550. 

 
Additional information can be found at the following CARB websites: 

 
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/cci-funding-guidelines-administering-agencies 

44

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB398
https://webmaps.arb.ca.gov/PriorityPopulations/
https://webmaps.arb.ca.gov/PriorityPopulations/
https://webmaps.arb.ca.gov/PriorityPopulations/
https://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/capandtrade/auctionproceeds/communityinvestments.htm
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/cci-legislative-guidance
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/cci-funding-guidelines-administering-agencies


September 29, 2023 

25 Item IV-E-1 

 

 
 
 
Attachment 2: Quantification Methodology and Co-Benefit Assessment Methodology 

 
CCI Quantification and Reporting Materials 

 
Administering agencies using ZETCP GGRF funding for capital expenditures must use the Funding Guidelines 
with the resources provided by CARB to develop effective programs and demonstrate compliance with 
program requirements. 

 
Resources include Quantification Methodologies (QMs) and Calculator Tools for estimating greenhouse gas 
(GHG) emission reductions and co-benefits; Benefit Criteria Tables (BCTs) for determining benefits to priority 
populations; and Reporting Templates for reporting outcomes. 

 
CARB staff developed the TIRCP QM and associated Calculator Tool to provide guidance for estimating the 
GHG emission reductions and selected co-benefits for each proposed project type. The calculator tool 
automates methods described in the QM document, outlines documentation requirements, and provides a 
link to a step-by-step user guide with project examples. Projects will report the total project GHG emission 
reductions and co-benefit estimated using the TIRCP Calculator tool as well as the total project GHG emission 
reductions per dollar of GGRF funds. 

 
The TIRCP Calculator Tool will be used for most ZETCP capital projects, and also for developing quantification 
estimates for new TIRCP capital projects using SB 125 funds. 

 
Using many of the same inputs required to estimate GHG emission reductions, the TIRCP Calculator Tool will 
estimate the following co-benefits and key variables from TIRCP projects 
• ROG emission reductions (lbs), 
• NOx emission reductions (lbs), 
• PM2.5 emission reductions (lbs), 
• Diesel PM emission reductions (lbs), 
• Passenger VMT reductions (miles), 
• Fossil fuel use reductions (gallons), 
• Fossil fuel energy use reductions (kWh), 
• Passenger travel cost savings ($), and 
• Energy and fuel cost savings ($). 

 
While many ZETCP and TIRCP projects will use the TIRCP calculator tool, there are some project types that may 
not be covered by a single tool. CARB staff have developed the ZETCP QM by compiling the calculator tools 
from TIRCP, LCTOP, the Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities (AHSC) program, the Low-Income 
Weatherization Program (LIWP), and the Low Carbon Fuel Production (LCFP) Program. The LIWP calculator can 
be used to calculate the benefits from solar panel and microgrid installations. The LCFP calculator can be used 
to calculate the benefits from alternative fuel generation in either a new facility or an expanded, existing 
facility. 

 
All CARB co-benefit assessment methodologies are available at: 
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/cci-methodologies 

 
Reporting templates are developed specifically for each program within California Climate Investments. These 
templates are used by TIRCP staff to report on outcomes from all projects funded by TIRCP, and are expected to 
also be used to report on outcomes for ZETCP GGRF-funded projects. Additional quantification tools will be 
identified by CARB for ZETCP project types that are not covered by current quantification tools, generally 

45

https://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/capandtrade/auctionproceeds/calsta_tircp_finalqm_cycle4.pdf?_ga=2.153538232.1048667823.1635195376-1725670222.1600706853
https://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/capandtrade/auctionproceeds/calsta_tircp_finalcalculator_cycle4.xlsx?_ga=2.229951516.1048667823.1635195376-1725670222.1600706853
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/cci-methodologies


September 29, 2023 

26 Item IV-E-1 

 

utilizing select tools used by existing GGRF programs. 
 

Additional information can be found at the following CARB website: 
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/cci-quantification-benefits-and-reporting-materials 

 
 

Co-benefit Assessment Methodology 
 
 

California Climate Investments support the State's climate change goals and provide many 
additional benefits to individuals, households, businesses, and communities. These "co-benefits" 
include social, economic, and environmental benefits. CARB provides guidance on quantification 
methods and reporting to administering agencies. CARB contracted with the University of 
California, Berkeley (UC Berkeley) to help research and develop methods for evaluating project 
co-benefits. Guidance on using the co-benefit assessment methodologies is contained in CARB's 
Funding Guidelines. 

 
 

The co-benefits were prioritized based on administering agency input and broad applicability to 
California Climate Investments programs. UC Berkeley first reviewed the scientific data to 
determine if methods could be developed and summarized the findings in literature reviews. 
Next, UC Berkeley and CARB developed Co-benefit Assessment Methodologies where feasible. 
CARB solicited public comment on draft versions in Spring 2018 prior to posting final Co-benefit 
Assessment Methodologies. CARB may review and update assessment methodologies periodically 
based on new or evolving project types; new legislation; available resources; new scientific 
developments or tools, or modifications in the analytical tools or approaches upon which the 
methodologies were based; or input from administering agencies or the public. 

 
 

The California Air Resources Board is updating the Co-benefit assessment methodology. See the 
following website for the final methodology. 

 
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/cci-methodologies 

46

https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/cci-quantification-benefits-and-reporting-materials
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/cci-funding-guidelines-administering-agencies
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/cci-funding-guidelines-administering-agencies
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/cci-funding-guidelines-administering-agencies
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/cci-methodologies


 
 

Item IV-E-1 
 

27 

Attachment 3: Benefit Criteria Tables 
 

CCI Benefit Criteria Tables 
 

ZETCP will use the Sustainable Transportation Benefit Criteria Table developed by CARB to ensure 
that programs meet the minimum levels of investments to projects that benefit residents of 
disadvantaged communities, low-income communities, and low-income households, collectively 
referred to as “priority populations”. 

 
All projects counting toward the statutory investment minimums must be located within an identified 
community and benefit individuals living within that community, or directly benefit residents of low-
income households anywhere in the State. Administering agencies must determine if a project meets the 
criteria for providing direct, meaningful, and assured benefits to priority populations using the following 
evaluation approach: 
Step 1: Identify the Priority Population(s). Be located within a census tract identified as a 
disadvantaged community or low-income community, or directly benefit residents of a low-income 
household. 
Step 2: Address a Need. Meaningfully address an important community or household need for 
the disadvantaged community, low-income community, or low-income household. 
Step 3: Provide a Benefit. Using the evaluation criteria, identify at least one direct, meaningful, and 
assured benefit that the project provides to priority populations. The benefit provided must directly 
address the identified need. 

 
Only investments that meet these criteria will be counted toward achieving the statutory investment 
minimums identified for priority populations. Administering agencies can fund projects that otherwise 
provide meaningful benefits, but do not meet these criteria; however, those projects will not be counted 
toward investment minimum. 

 

47

https://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/capandtrade/auctionproceeds/criteria-table-sustainabletransportation.pdf?_ga=2.225888282.1048667823.1635195376-1725670222.1600706853


RESOLUTION: 2024-030 

1 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 OF THE TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY  

ADOPTING TCAG TCRTA SB 125 PROGRAM SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT  
 

WHEREAS, the Joint Powers Agreement, dated August 11, 2022, by and 
among the County of Tulare and the Cities of Dinuba, Exeter, Farmersville, Lindsay, 
Tulare, and Woodlake (each, a “Party” or “Member Agency”) hereafter called Tulare 
County Regional Transit Agency “TCRTA”; and 

WHEREAS, on June 28, 2023, the California State Legislature approved SB 
125, which authorized the distribution of $4 billion in Transit and Intercity Rail 
Capital Program (TIRCP) and $1.1 billion in Zero-Emission Transit Capital Program 
(ZETCP) funds to regional transportation planning agencies according to a 
population-based formula; and 

WHEREAS, TCAG was allocated $48,671,620 in TIRCP and $7,372,832 in 
ZETCP funding; and 

WHEREAS, TCAG staff submitted a board-approved program of projects to 
CalSTA in accordance with program guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, CalSTA authorized the disbursement of $24,305,505 of TIRCP 
and  $2,748,056 of ZETCP funding to TCAG on August 7, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, TCAG has included several TCRTA Projects in its SB 125 Program 
including:  

1. Charging Infrastructure - $9.2 million 
2. Microtransit Operating - $5.9 million 
3. Microtransit Vans - $2.8 million 

WHEREAS, it is in the interest of TCAG and member agencies to execute 
agreements governing the disbursement and utilization of these funds in an 
expeditious manner. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors conducted a public hearing and approved 
the Microtransit Service Changes to implement and pursue performance metric 
targets in the form of 3 passengers per hour for urban zones and 2 per hour for rural 
zones and target average wait times of 30 minutes and 60 minutes respectively; and  

48



RESOLUTION: 2024-030 

2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY, adopts the attached, “TCAG 
TCRTA SB 125 Program Cooperative Agreement”. 

BE IT ADDITIONALLY RESOLVED that the Interim Executive Director is 
hereby authorized to sign the SB 125 Cooperative Agreement.  

 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was adopted upon motion of ______________ and 
seconded by ______________ at meeting thereof held on the 18th day of November 2024. 

 
 

AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  

     
 
 
 

Signed_________________________ 
       Jose Sigala 
       Board Chair 
 
 
ATTEST: 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution 2024-030 was duly adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency at a regular meeting 
thereof held on the 18th day November 2024. 
 
 
Signed_______________________ 

Derek Winning 
Interim Executive Director 

 

49



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 

50



Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
 

AGENDA ITEM IV-F 
November 18, 2024  
Prepared by Derek Winning, Interim Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT: 

Action: Adoption of Resolution 2024-031 Approving Agreement with TCAG for 
Transit Services for the COS Student Transit Pass Program  

BACKGROUND: 
Since September 2010, students of College of the Sequoias (COS) voted for the 
implementation of a mandatory transportation fee for full and part-time students which 
provides students with an unlimited fixed route pass valid on Tulare County fixed route 
bus services (excluding Seqouia Shuttle) and Kings Area Rural Transit fixed routes. 
These transportation funds are provided to TCAG who, in turn, distribute the funds to 
participating transit providers. 

DISCUSSION: 

The previous agreement to the same effect expires December 31, 2024. Resolution 
2024-031 approves renewing the agreement between TCAG and TCRTA to provide 
transit service to COS students for the student pass program. The renewed agreement 
is effective November of 2024 and expires December 31, 2030.  

The timeline for disbursement has changed from 10 days to 20 business days after the 
conclusion of the semester. This timeline accommodates the time it takes for 
transactions between COS and TCAG and then TCAG and transit providers to take 
place.  

RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency Board of Directors adopt Resolution 
2024-031 approving the Agreement with TCAG for Transit Services for the COS Student 
Transit Pass Program. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Agreement for Transit Services for the College of the Sequoias Student Transit Pass 

Program Between the Tulare County Association of Governments and Tulare 
County Regional Transit Agency 

2. Resolution 2024-031 
 

51



Item IV-F-1 

TRANSIT PROVIDER AGREEMENT 
 

FOR TRANSIT SERVICES FOR THE COLLEGE OF THE SEQUOIAS 
STUDENT TRANSIT PASS PROGRAM 

 
BETWEEN THE TULARE COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 

(TCAG) 
AND TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY (TCRTA) 

 
 
This Agreement is made and entered into this 18th Day of November 2024, by and 
between the Tulare County Association of Governments, hereinafter referred to as “TCAG,” 
and Tulare County Regional Transit Agency, hereinafter referred to as “TCRTA,” effective 
January 1, 2025. 
 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, in September 2010 College of the Sequoias (COS) students voted to 
implement a mandatory transportation fee of $5 per full-time student, and $4 per part-
time student, which would provide students with an unlimited fixed route transit pass valid 
on Tulare County fixed route bus services (excluding Sequoia Shuttle) and Kings Area Rural 
Transit fixed routes; and 
 

WHEREAS, in May 2014 COS students voted to implement an additional mandatory 
fee of $5 per full-time and part-time student to contribute to the existing COS Student 
Transit Pass Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the transit services available to registered students will include fixed 
route services on the following transit systems: Visalia Transit, Porterville Transit, and 
Tulare County Regional Transit Agency (TCRTA); and 
 

WHEREAS, the COS Board of Trustees will contribute $1.00 to the transportation 
fund for each COS student that is enrolled, per semester in the semester in which they are 
enrolled; and   
 

WHEREAS, COS students will not receive student transit program identification valid 
on participating fixed route transit unless they have paid their student transportation fees 
for the semester; and  
 

WHEREAS, additional funding may be received from grants and other sources and 
may be applied during the contract period of the agreement; and  
 

WHEREAS, COS will collect all transportation funds and provide to TCAG, based on 
the total number of students paying fees; and 
 

52



Item IV-F-1 
 

 2 

WHEREAS, TCRTA will track transit ridership by students using valid COS 
identification cards using a tracking method approved by TCAG; and 
 

WHEREAS, TCRTA will submit ridership data for student passengers using valid COS 
student identification to TCAG following the conclusion of each semester; and  
 

WHEREAS, TCRTA will submit the average miles per passenger for participating 
fixed route systems only from each year’s State Controller’s Report or National Transit 
Database reporting; and 
 

WHEREAS, TCAG will retain 1% from the Board of Trustees and COS Student funds 
for administration costs; and  
 

WHEREAS, if TCRTA fails to submit appropriate COS student ridership data by the 
21st day of the month following the end of the semester, the Agency agrees to accept 
payment based on one-half of their previous semester’s ridership data; and 
 

WHEREAS, TCAG shall distribute fifty-percent of received funds to participating 
transit providers based on ridership and mileage criteria; and 
 

WHEREAS, TCAG shall distribute fifty-percent of received funds to transit providers 
based on new and expanded service costs incurred by transit providers as a direct result 
of COS student riders; and 
 

WHEREAS, TCAG shall determine the criteria for determining new and expanded 
service costs incurred as a direct result of COS student riders, with input from transit 
providers, and will approve amounts payable; and 

 
WHEREAS, TCAG shall adopt criteria for determination of new and expanded service 

costs, and the first proposal for criteria parameters will be presented to the TCAG Board in 
September 2024; and 
 

WHEREAS, this agreement shall be valid for the Fall 2014 academic semester 
through the Fall 2020 academic semester, unless otherwise amended or superseded. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. TERM.  This agreement shall commence on January 1, 2025, and shall expire at 

11:59 PM on January 1, 2031, unless otherwise terminated, amended, or 
superseded. The agreement will be renewable for similar or different terms and 
conditions upon mutual agreement between all parties. 
 

2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  While engaged in carrying out and complying with 
the terms and conditions of this agreement, TCAG is an independent contractor, 
and not an officer, agent, or employee of TCRTA.  

 
3. PAYMENT. TCAG agrees to transfer the funds received by COS (less administrative 

and material costs) after the conclusion of each semester/session in which funds are 
collected to participating agencies within 20 business days of receiving the funds, 

53



Item IV-F-1 
 

 3 

and once all COS student ridership data and average passenger mileage is received 
for the semester/session. Ridership totals are to be submitted following the close of 
each semester and are due by the 21st of the month following the end of the 
previous semester.  If the 21st falls on a weekend, the data is due the following 
working day.  If TCRTA fails to submit the required data by the 21st of the month 
after the prior semester, TCRTA agrees to accept payment based on one-half of 
their previous month’s ridership.  
 
TCAG will disburse fifty percent of the funds received (less administrative and 
material costs) to transit providers based on the following formula: 50% of 
applicable semester/session funds in proportion to provider’s share of student 
ridership and 50% of applicable semester/session funds in proportion to provider 
average passenger mile percentage as reported in TCRTA’s annual State Controller 
Report (SCR). Ridership shall be tracked by TCRTA through TCRTA operations 
contractor/employees and submitted in a report. TCRTA shall make available the 
source documents to verify that report if requested by TCAG.  
 
TCAG will disburse funds from the other fifty-percent of those received (less 
administration) to transit providers based on new and expanded service costs 
incurred by transit providers as a direct result of COS student riders. Said expenses 
must be for service expansion or capital improvements made after the 
commencement of this agreement that are attributable in part or in whole to COS 
student ridership. Service costs and capital costs exceeding $5,000 shall be 
reimbursed in proportion to student ridership on the route or routes in question. 
Capital costs of $5,000 or less that are incurred because of COS student pass 
program ridership shall be reimbursed in full. 
 
If the latter defined fifty-percent of funds exceeds the approved amount of costs 
incurred, TCAG will hold those funds for future said expenses. If the funds are less 
than the approved costs incurred, TCAG will disperse funds up to the payable 
amount as they come in. In the instance that multiple agencies are owed amounts 
for this portion of funds, funds will be paid out proportionately based on amount 
owed to each agency. 

 
4. ADMINISTRATION COSTS.  In consideration of the above payments and other 

activities associated with the program’s administration, TCAG will retain 1% of total 
funds for administration costs. Funds received for the program shall also pay for 
proper identification for student riders. Student identification shall be updated 
every semester/session.  

 
5. DEFAULT.  Upon default by TCAG or TCRTA in any of the covenants or conditions of 

this agreement, TCAG or TCRTA may terminate agreement upon 60 days advance 
written notice to the defaulting party.   

 
6. AMENDMENTS.  This agreement cannot be changed or supplemented orally and 

may be modified or superseded only by written instrument executed by both 
parties.  

 

54



Item IV-F-1 
 

 4 

7. GOVERNING LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

 
8. BINDING EFFECT.  This agreement is for the benefit of and shall be binding on all 

parties and their respective successors, heirs, and assigns. 
 
9. ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS.  Each party shall bear its own attorneys’ fees and 

costs for all such fees and costs incurred prior to the date of execution of this 
agreement. 

 
10. BREACH OF AGREEMENT.  If either party breaches this agreement, the prevailing 

party shall be entitled to all damages reasonably flowing from the breach. 
 
11. INDEMNIFICATION.  TCRTA and TCAG shall hold each other harmless, defend and 

indemnify their respective agents, officers and employees from and against any 
liability, claims, actions, costs, damages or losses of any kind, including death or 
injury to any person and/or damage to property, arising out of the activities of 
TCRTA or TCAG or its agents, officers and employees under this agreement.  This 
indemnification shall be provided by each party to the other party regarding its own 
activities undertaken pursuant to this agreement, or as a result of the relationship 
thereby created, including any claims that may be made against either party by any 
taxing authority asserting that an employer-employee relationship exists by reason 
of this agreement, and any claims made against either party alleging civil rights 
violations by such party under Government Code sections 12920 et seq. (California 
Fair Employment and Housing Act).  This indemnification obligation shall continue 
beyond the term of this agreement as to any acts or omissions occurring under this 
agreement or any extension of this agreement. 

 
12. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS.  This agreement may be executed in counterparts 

such that the signatures may appear on separate signature pages.  A copy of an 
original, with all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a fully executed 
agreement. 

 
13. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this agreement is held to be void, voidable, or 

unenforceable, the remaining portions of the agreement shall remain in full force 
and effect. 

 
14. INTERPRETATION.  The language of all parts of this agreement shall, in all cases, be 

construed as a whole, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against 
either party. 

 
15. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW.  TCAG agrees to perform the services contemplated by 

this agreement in a professional and a competent manner and in compliance with 
all state or federal laws or regulations governing the services to be rendered 
pursuant to this agreement. 
 

16. BOARD APPROVAL.  The parties recognize that the effectiveness of this agreement 
is contingent upon approval by the TCRTA and TCAG. 

 

55



Item IV-F-1 
 

 5 

17. OTHER DOCUMENTS/ACTS.  The parties agree to work together diligently and to 
execute related documents and perform related acts necessary for the successful 
performance of this agreement. 

 
18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This agreement and its attachments, if any, constitute the 

entire agreement and understanding between the parties.  There are no oral 
understandings, terms, or conditions, and neither party has relied upon any 
representation, express or implied, not contained in this agreement.  All prior 
understandings, terms, or conditions are deemed merged into this agreement and 
its attachments.   

 
19. NOTICES TO PARTIES.  All notices to be given to the parties to this agreement shall 

be in writing and served by depositing same in the United States Mail, postage 
prepaid, registered or certified mail. 

 
Notices to TCAG should be addressed to: 

 
 Tulare County Association of Governments 

210 N. Church Street, Suite B 
Visalia, CA  93291 
 
Notices to TCRTA should be addressed to: 

  
Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E Center Ave. 
Visalia, CA 93291 
  
IN WITNESS WHEROF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement in duplicate 

the day and year first herein above written. 
 
 
TULARE COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS: 
 
Signature         Date 
 
Ted Smalley, Executive Director 
Name and Title   
 
TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY: 
 
Signature         Date 
 
Name and Title 
 
Attest: ______________________ 
 
 
Name and Title        Date 

56



RESOLUTION: 2024-031 
 

  
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY  

APPOVING AN AGREEMENT WITH TULARE COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF 
GOVERNMENTS FOR THE TRANSIT SERVICES FOR COLLEGE OF THE SEQUOIAS 

STUDENT TRANSIT PASS PROGRAM 
 
 WHEREAS, the Joint Powers Agreement, dated August 11, 2022, by and among 
the County of Tulare and the Cities of Dinuba, Exeter, Farmersville, Lindsay, Tulare, and 
Woodlake (each, a “Party” or “Member Agency”) hereafter called Tulare County 
Regional Transit Agency “TCRTA”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the previous agreement with Tulare County Association of 
Governments for Transit Services for College of Sequoias Student Transit Pass Program 
expires December 2024; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is proposed that TCRTA renew its contract for a term of six years, 

from November 2024 to December 30, 2030. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY, does hereby Approve an Agreement 
with Tulare County Association of Governments for Transit Services for College of the 
Sequoias Student Transit Pass Program. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Interim Executive Director is hereby 

authorized to sign the  TCAG COS Student Pass Program Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

57



RESOLUTION: 2024-031 
 

  
  

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was adopted upon motion of _____ and seconded 
by ______ at meeting thereof held on the 18th day of November 2024. 

YES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Signed_________________________ 
Jose Sigala Board Chair 

 
ATTEST: 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution 2024-031 was duly adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency at a special meeting 
thereof held on the 18th day of November 2024. 
 

Signed_______________________ 
Derek Winning, Interim Executive Director 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58



Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-A 
November 18th, 2024  
Prepared by Derek Winning, Interim Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT: 

Action:   Adoption of a Resolution 2024-032 Appointing Melissa Cashen as Interim 
Finance Manager, approving 5% Out of Class Pay for Interim Finance 
Manager for Performing Duties Outside of Current Assigned Job Class. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Joint Powers Agreement authorizes TCRTA to own, operate, and administer the 
transit services for its Member Agencies. Currently, TCRTA does not have a Finance 
manager. A Finance Manager is needed to enable TCRTA to handle outstanding 
Finance-related deadlines and the financial requirements of the agency. Melissa Cashen 
is currently Accountant II for TCRTA and has already taken care of some of these duties 
and responsibilities.  

DISCUSSION: 
Staff have determined that an additional 5% out of class pay may be instituted to cover 
the absence of the Finance Manager. Below is a list of potential new assignments for 
each staff. The appropriate paperwork justifying the additional duties will be submitted to 
Tulare County Human Resources for approval. Upon submission to the County of Tulare 
Human Resources Department and approval of the same, the process will take at a 
minimum 30 days but would go into effect as of November 18th, 2024. The proposed out 
of class allocation of positions and compensation for TCRTA are as follows: 
 
TCRTA Finance Manager                                        $32.1613/hr 

 ($60,899.65/annual). 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency Board of Directors: 
 
1. Approve the draft Resolution to appoint Melissa Cashen as Interim Finance 
Manager of TCRTA, and pay Melissa Cashen 5% out of class pay for the listed position 
classification and compensation; and 
 
2. Authorize the Interim Executive Director to prepare out-of-class pay requests as 
deemed necessary, upon approval by County Human Resources, and approve minor 
changes as necessary to implement said action. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

59



The proposed recommendations will not exceed the current approved budget for FY 24/25. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Resolution 2024-32 appointing Melissa Cashen as Interim Finance Manager and 

approving 5% out of class pay for TCRTA Employees performing duties outside of 
current assigned job class.  

60



RESOLUTION: 2024-032 
 

  
  

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY  
APPOINTING MELISSA CASHEN AS INTERIM FINANCE MANAGER, 

APPROVING 5% OUT OF CLASS PAY FOR MELISSA CASHEN FOR PERFORMING DUTIES 
OUTSIDE OF CURRENT ASSIGNED JOB CLASS, AND AUTHORIZING INTERIM EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO PREPARE OUT OF CLASS REQUESTS AS NECESSARY 
 
 WHEREAS, the Joint Powers Agreement, dated August 11, 2022, by and among 
the County of Tulare and the Cities of Dinuba, Exeter, Farmersville, Lindsay, Tulare, and 
Woodlake (each, a “Party” or “Member Agency”) hereafter called Tulare County 
Regional Transit Agency “TCRTA”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the formation and operation of TCRTA is to own, 
operate, and administer a public transportation system within the jurisdictions of and 
on behalf of the Member Agencies; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is proposed that Melissa Cashen be appointed as the Interim 

Finance Manager for TCRTA; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is proposed that Melissa Cashen receives 5% out of class pay for her 

duties as TCRTA Interim Finance Manager; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is proposed that TCRTA authorize the Interim Executive Director to 

prepare and submit a 5% out of class pay request to Tulare County Human Resources for 
any personnel performing duties outside of their existing job description; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is proposed that TCRTA authorize the Executive Director to approve 
minor changes as necessary to implement said action; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY, does hereby Appoint Melissa Cashen to 
be Interim Finance Manager. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD does further approve Melissa 

Cashen to receive a 5% out of class pay her duties as Interim Finance Manager, to wit: 
$32.1613/hour ($60,899.65/annual), and does authorize the Interim Executive Director 
to prepare and submit a 5% out of class pay request. 

 
 BE IT ADDITIONALLY RESOLVED that the Interim Executive Director is hereby 

authorized to make minor changes as necessary to implement the action.  
 

61



RESOLUTION: 2024-032 
 

  
  

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was adopted upon motion of _____ and seconded 
by ______ at meeting thereof held on the 18th day of November 2024. 

YES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Signed_________________________ 
Jose Sigala Board Chair 

 
ATTEST: 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution 2024-032 was duly adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency at a special meeting 
thereof held on the 18th day of November 2024. 
 

Signed_______________________ 
Derek Winning, Interim Executive Director 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

62



1 
 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-B 

November 18, 2024 
Prepared by Derek Winning, TCRTA Staff  
 
SUBJECT: 

Action: Adoption of Resolution 2024-033 Approve Transdev Services Agreement 
Amendment 1 

BACKGROUND: 

TCRTA and Transdev entered into a Services Agreement dated May 22, 2022, for 
Transdev to provide operations and maintenance services in connection with Request for 
Proposals No. 2021-01 for a term of 5 years with 3 additional optional years. 

The original Services Agreement called for a renegotiation of the variable rate upon 
implementation of additional microtransit services.  At the time of the RFP, both parties 
were unsure of the costs associated with microtransit services on a regional scale.  With 
the deployment of regional microtransit in April and July of 2024, that opened discussions 
on variable rate changes starting in year 3 of the original Services Agreement. The 
variable rates per service hour in the original Services Agreement are as follows: 

 

DISCUSSION: 
TCRTA Staff picked up with the negotiation with Transdev upon appointment of the 
Interim Executive Director and finalized the Services Agreement Amendment 1 over the 
past month.  Amendment 1 primarily addresses the variable rate with minor updates to 
the fixed rates and also covers Yr 1 and Year 2 disputes between the two parties 
related to invoice accuracy and withheld payments by prior Executive Directors.  
Amendment 1 will result in an estimated savings to TCRTA in the amount of $750,000 
in FY 24/25 and $820,000 in FY 25/26.  

 
 
 

Transdev Variable Rates

Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4
58.13$                         61.49$                   64.51$                   67.63$                   

Transdev Amend 1 Variable Rates

Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4
58.13$                         61.49$                   60.04$                   62.79$                   

63



2 
 

Other important considerations contained in Transdev Services Agreement Amendment 
1 are as follows: 

1. Amendment 1 is retroactive to July 1, 2024. 
2. Service Agreement Amended to a term of 4 years with an additional 4 optional 

years. 
3. TCRTA agrees to pay Transdev approx. $95,000 for startup costs related to 

service initiation in Porterville and microtransit expansion. 
4. TCRTA agrees to pay Transdev approx. $88,000 for April, May, June 2024 

invoices that were partially withheld. 
5. Transdev agrees to pay approx. $216,000 to TCRTA for invoice discrepancies in 

FY 22/23. 
6. Transdev agrees to provide accurate NTD data and invoices January 1, 2025 

forward or Transdev will pay TCRTA approx. $29,000. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adoption of Resolution 2024-033 Approve Transdev Services Agreement Amendment 1 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Reduction of approximately $750,000 in direct Transdev service costs applicable to FY 
24/25 and $820,000 in FY 25/26 TCRTA Budget under line item 54. Professional and 
Specialized Expense (7043). 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Transdev Services Agreement Amendment 1    

 

64



Item V-B-1 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

 This FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE SERVICES AGREEMENT (“First Amendment”) is by and 
between the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency, a California joint powers public agency ("TCRTA" 
or "Agency") and Transdev Services, Inc., a Maryland corporation ("Transdev" or "Contractor") 
(Collectively, the “Parties) is effective as of the date of final signature hereto (“Effective Date”).  

 WHEREAS, Agency and Transdev entered into a Services Agreement dated May 22, 2022, for 
Transdev to provide operations and maintenance services in connection with Request for Proposals No. 
2021-01 and related materials as incorporated therein (“Services Agreement”);  

 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Services Agreement as further provided below; 

 NOW THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and covenants set forth herein and for other good 
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree 
as follows:   

1. Section 2 of the Services Agreement shall be deleted and replaced with the following: 
 
2. THE TERM  
 
2.1 The term of this Contract is for a period of four (4) years commencing on July 1, 2022, and 
ending on June 30, 2026, unless the term is extended or earlier terminated as provided for 
herein.  Transdev Invoices for July, August, September, and October 2024 will be revised as 
needed to reflect this agreement (Exhibit 1) with respect to variable rate and fixed costs.  
 
2.2 Upon mutual agreement of the Parties, the term of this Contract may be extended four 
additional periods of one year each (from July 1, 2026 through June 30, 2027; from July 1, 
2027 through June 30, 2028; from July 1, 2028 through June 30, 2029; and from July 1, 2029 
through June 30, 3030).   
 

2. Effective July 1, 2024, the rates provided in the table attached hereto as Exhibit 1 shall apply 
to the services provided by Transdev including Fixed Route, DAR, On-Demand microtransit, 
and Tule River Tribe Service and Transdev shall be compensated accordingly. The rates 
displayed in Exhibit 1 correspond to the types of service being provided. Exhibit 1 replaces 
Exhibit 3 – Transdev Prices Pages of the original Service Agreement.  
 

3. Transdev will invoice Agency for incurred startup costs related the termination of SM Transit 
and the subsequent April 15, 2024 Transdev replacement operations in the City of Porterville 
and also costs related to the regional microtransit startups of April 1, 2024 and July 1, 2024 in 
the amount of $ 95,280.33. 

 
4. As previously agreed to by the Parties, Transdev is no longer required to maintain Trapeze in 

connection with the services and will have no obligation to contribute to the cost of same.  
Transdev will continue using Trip Shot until such time as Agency determines that its use is no 
longer needed and will provide Transdev with a 30-day notice as to its intentions to discontinue 
the use of Trip Shot. Transdev will bill Agency for any unbilled expenses for Trapeze prior to 
its end date and will continue billing Agency for the use of Trip Shot until its use is discontinued 
as provided herein. 

 

65



Item V-B-1 
 

5. Agency agrees to pay Transdev and Transdev agrees to accept a total amount of $87,734.19 in 
connection with alleged discrepancies related to the April, May and June (2024) invoices 
related to On-demand microtransit variable rate.   

 
6. Notwithstanding the above (5.), Transdev agrees to pay the Agency (and Agency agrees to 

accept) a total amount of $216,195.35 in connection with other alleged billing discrepancies. 
The Parties agree and acknowledge that the aforementioned amounts settle and close all 
remaining billing issues from July 1st, 2022 through June 30, 2024. Any and all other billing 
discrepancies and related disputes regarding billing and/or invoicing of Transdev up to and 
including the Effective Date of this First Amendment will hereby be deemed fully resolved. 

 
7. Notwithstanding the above (6.), Agency acknowledges progress by Transdev on data reporting 

(NTD) and invoice accuracy.  Transdev agrees to provide accurate NTD data and invoices for 
that are reconciled prior to submittal to Agency.  Agency agrees to invest in technologies to 
enable data accuracy and invoice reconciliation.  Transdev agrees to pay Agency in the amount 
of $29,136.42 should data accuracy and invoice discrepancies not be rectified by January 1, 
2025. 

 
8. Except as expressly amended herein, all other terms and conditions of the Services 

Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.  
 
 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 

 Signature:_________________________ 

 Printed Name:______________________ 

 Title:_____________________________ 

 Date:_____________________________ 

 

 Transdev Services, Inc.  

 Signature:_________________________ 

 Printed Name:______________________ 

 Title:_____________________________ 

 Date:_____________________________ 

  

66



Item V-B-1 
 

EXHIBIT 1  

 

 

FINAL TIER RATE SUMMARY
HOURS VARIABLE FIXED BUS STOP FLEET CLEAN TR. CTR CL MAINT TOTAL

FY 3 24-25 TIER 1 UNDER 105,000 60.04$       391,179$              18,123$        16,572$                7,400$      115,081$        12,434,320$         
TIER 2 105,000 - 120,000 57.48$       418,049$              18,172$        16,780$                7,400$      119,416$        13,424,555$         
TIER 3 120,001 - 135,000 54.57$       458,264$              18,247$        17,001$                7,400$      137,787$        14,622,507$         
TIER 4 135,001 - 150,000 52.35$       495,053$              18,296$        17,208$                7,400$      148,494$        15,696,996$         
TIER 5 150,001 - 165,000 50.97$       522,319$              18,344$        17,404$                7,400$      154,264$        16,671,740$         

FY 4 25-26 TIER 1 UNDER 105,000 62.79$       401,039$              18,915$        17,369$                7,622$      118,962$        12,888,587$         
TIER 2 105,000 - 120,000 60.19$       429,232$              18,967$        17,585$                7,622$      123,463$        13,934,056$         
TIER 3 120,001 - 135,000 57.18$       471,143$              19,046$        17,814$                7,622$      142,468$        15,187,785$         
TIER 4 135,001 - 150,000 54.80$       509,439$              19,097$        18,030$                7,622$      153,564$        16,302,719$         
TIER 5 150,001 - 165,000 53.34$       538,121$              19,148$        18,232$                7,622$      159,574$        17,320,830$         

67



RESOLUTION: 2024-033 

1 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 OF THE TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY  

ADOPTING TCRTA TRANSDEV SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 1 
 

WHEREAS, TCRTA and Transdev entered into a Services Agreement dated 
May 22, 2022, for Transdev to provide operations and maintenance services in 
connection with Request for Proposals No. 2021-01 for a term of 5 years with 3 
additional optional years; and  

WHEREAS, TCRTA and Transdev negotiated Services Agreement Amendment 
1 in good faith with a revised term of 4 years with 3 additional optional years; and  

WHEREAS, Services Agreement 1 is retroactive to July 1, 2024, and all 
invoices will be revised; accordingly, and  

WHEREAS, other considerations included in Amendment 1 resolve disputed 
invoices and withheld payments from FY 22/23 and FY 23/24; and  

WHEREAS, the variable rates and fixed cost schedule included as Exhibit 1 in 
the Transdev Services Agreement Amendment 1 replace that of rate tables in the 
original agreement; and   

WHEREAS, Except as expressly amended therein, all other terms and 
conditions of the original Services Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full 
force and effect.  and   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY, adopts the attached, “Transdev 
Services Agreement Amendment 1”. 

BE IT ADDITIONALLY RESOLVED that the Interim Executive Director is 
hereby authorized to sign the Transdev Services Agreement 1.  

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was adopted upon motion of ______________ and 
seconded by ______________ at meeting thereof held on the 18th day of November 2024. 

 
 

68



RESOLUTION: 2024-033 

2 
 

AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  

     
 
 
 

Signed_________________________ 
       Jose Sigala 
       Board Chair 
 
 
ATTEST: 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution 2024-033 was duly adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency at a regular meeting 
thereof held on the 18th day November 2024. 
 
 
Signed_______________________ 

Derek Winning 
Interim Executive Director 

 

 

69



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 

70



Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-C  
November 18, 2024  
Prepared by Derek Winning, Interim Executive Director and Olivia Forte, Transit 
Analyst 
 
SUBJECT: 

Public Hearing: Microtransit Proposed Service Changes  

BACKGROUND: 
At the Board meeting of June 26, 2024, the Board of Directors conducted a public hearing 
and subsequently approved the Microtransit Phase 3 Service Changes with a start date 
of July 1, 2024. In anticipation of City of Visalia’s own microtransit service launch, TCRTA 
Transport service would cease before October 2024.  
 
At the Board meeting of October 21, 2024, Interim executive Director, Derek Winning, 
presented agency goals, including the rectification of microtransit deployment in line with 
Board direction regarding intracity Visalia service. The Board of Directors agreed to 
observe a public comment period for Proposed Microtransit Service Changes that closes 
on November 18th, at which time a public hearing would be held. 

DISCUSSION: 
In anticipation of the City of Visalia deploying its own microtransit service, TCRTA 
proposes discontinuing its service of providing intra-city trips in the Visalia zone. For 
inter-city trips to and from the City of Visalia, riders may continue to be dropped off and 
picked up from their destination.  

 
TCRTA is also proposing changes to microtransit pick-up times from 30 minutes in all 
areas to a market-based approach where pick-up times are determined by availability 
with the rider determining whether to accept the ride as they see fit. Targeted average 
pick-up times for urban areas are proposed to be under 30 minutes, and rural areas 
under one hour.   
 
If approved, service changes will go live on November 19, 2024. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency Board of Directors: 

1. Conduct a public hearing to receive public comments on the proposed Microtransit 
Service Changes. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Public Notice of Proposed Microtransit Service Changes 

71



Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E. Center Ave. 

Visalia, California 93291 
Info: (559) 372-2290 

www.gotcrta.org 

Dinuba    Exeter    Farmersville    Lindsay    Tulare    Woodlake    County of Tulare 

The Tulare County Regional Transit Agency (TCRTA) is proposing changes to its on-demand 
microtransit service.  

In anticipation of the City of Visalia deploying its own microtransit service, TCRTA proposes 
discontinuing its service of providing intra-city trips in the Visalia zone. For Inter-city trips to 
and from the City of Visalia, riders will continue to be dropped off and picked up from their 
destination. Going forward, TCRTA will collaborate with its partners on microtransit inter-city 
trip policy and protocols.  

TCRTA is also proposing changes to microtransit pick-up times from 30 minutes in all areas to 
a market-based approach where pick-up times are determined by availability with the rider 
determining whether to accept the ride as they see fit. Targeted average pick-up times for 
urban areas are proposed to be under 30 minutes, and rural areas under one hour.   

Members of the public are encouraged to comment. A Public Hearing for final comments will 
be held at the TCRTA Board Meeting scheduled for Monday, November 18, 2024, at 4:00 pm. 
The hearing will be held in the TCRTA Conference Room located at 200 E. Center Ave., Visalia, 
CA 93291.  

Item V-C-1

72



1 
 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-D 

November 18, 2024 
Prepared by Derek Winning and Olivia Forte, TCRTA Staff  
 
SUBJECT: 

Action: Adoption of Resolution 2024-034 approving TCRTA Microtransit 
redeployment and microtransit pilot target metrics.  

BACKGROUND: 
At the Board Meeting of October 21, 2024, Derek Winning, TCRTA’s Interim Executive 
Director, shared agency goals, including the rectification of microtransit service 
deployment in line with the Board’s direction regarding intracity Visalia service. A public 
notice on Proposed Microtransit Service Changes was released October 18, 2024 with a 
subsequent public hearing date of November 18, 2024. 

DISCUSSION: 
Current Microtransit Service Performance 
TCRTA Transport rides are offered based on vehicle availability in the service zone. Trips 
appear “unavailable” if rides cannot be dispatched within 30 minutes.  
The practice of over-deploying vehicles in combination with a promised 30-minute pick-
up window results in low productivity (passengers per hour) and inflates the cost of service 
per hour.  

 

73



2 
 

 
 
Proposed Microtransit Service and Performance Targets 
Staff propose no changes to the hours of operation and no reshaping of service 
zones, with the exception of removing intracity service in the City of Visalia. 
As a remedy for low productivity, staff propose 1) a target average wait time and 2) 
optimizing vehicle allocation in the different service zones. Target average wait times are 
proposed to be under 30 minutes for urban areas and under 60 minutes for rural areas. 
The employment of standby vehicles will be used to evaluate if the vehicle allocation is 
right-sized, periodically.  
Implementing these measures will have a direct impact on target productivity, which is 
proposed to be three passengers per hour for urban areas and two for rural areas.  
 

 

 

74



3 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adoption of Resolution 2024-034 approving TCRTA Microtransit redeployment and 
microtransit pilot target metrics.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Reduction of approximately $850,000 in direct Transdev service costs applicable to FY 
24/25 TCRTA Budget under line item 54. Professional and Specialized Expense (7043). 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Public Notice of Proposed Microtransit Service Changes 
2. Resolution 2024-034 TCRTA Microtransit redeployment and Microtransit Pilot target 

metrics. 

75



Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E. Center Ave. 

Visalia, California 93291 
Info: (559) 372-2290 

www.gotcrta.org 

Dinuba    Exeter    Farmersville    Lindsay    Tulare    Woodlake    County of Tulare 

The Tulare County Regional Transit Agency (TCRTA) is proposing changes to its on-demand 
microtransit service.  

In anticipation of the City of Visalia deploying its own microtransit service, TCRTA proposes 
discontinuing its service of providing intra-city trips in the Visalia zone. For Inter-city trips to 
and from the City of Visalia, riders will continue to be dropped off and picked up from their 
destination. Going forward, TCRTA will collaborate with its partners on microtransit inter-city 
trip policy and protocols.  

TCRTA is also proposing changes to microtransit pick-up times from 30 minutes in all areas to 
a market-based approach where pick-up times are determined by availability with the rider 
determining whether to accept the ride as they see fit. Targeted average pick-up times for 
urban areas are proposed to be under 30 minutes, and rural areas under one hour.   

Members of the public are encouraged to comment. A Public Hearing for final comments will 
be held at the TCRTA Board Meeting scheduled for Monday, November 18, 2024, at 4:00 pm. 
The hearing will be held in the TCRTA Conference Room located at 200 E. Center Ave., Visalia, 
CA 93291.  

Item V-D-1

76



RESOLUTION: 2024-034 

1 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 OF THE TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY  

ADOPTING TCRTA MICROTRANSIT  
SERVICE CHANGES AND MICROTRANSIT PILOT TARGET METRICS 

 

WHEREAS, the Joint Powers Agreement, dated August 11, 2022, by and 
among the County of Tulare and the Cities of Dinuba, Exeter, Farmersville, Lindsay, 
Tulare, and Woodlake (each, a “Party” or “Member Agency”) hereafter called Tulare 
County Regional Transit Agency “TCRTA”; and 

WHEREAS, the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency Board of Directors 
approved the provision of a regional microtransit (on-demand) expansion of 
services contingent on sufficient CMAQ funding for an initial three (3) year period on 
February 22, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency submitted a public 
notice to inform the public of the proposed Microtransit Pilot Service Changes; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors conducted a public hearing and approved 
the Microtransit Service Changes to intracity Visalia travel; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors conducted a public hearing and approved 
the Microtransit Service Changes to adjust the vehicle deployment of the service 
areas; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors conducted a public hearing and approved 
the Microtransit Service Changes to revise promised wait-time limits to target 
average wait times; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors conducted a public hearing and approved 
the Microtransit Service Changes to implement and pursue performance metric 
targets in the form of 3 passengers per hour for urban zones and 2 per hour for rural 
zones and target average wait times of 30 minutes and 60 minutes respectively; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY, hereby approves Microtransit 
Pilot performance metric targets for passengers per hour and average wait time. 

77



RESOLUTION: 2024-034 

2 
 

BE IT ADDITIONALLY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
TULARE COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT AGENCY, does hereby adopt the following 
Microtransit Service Changes effective November 20, 2024: 

The Microtransit Service Changes include the following service zones and 
parameters. NOTE: Riders can travel within designated zones, but not between 
zones. 
 
Unchanged Zone: Tulare–South County 

• Travel Parameters 
Riders can travel within and between Tulare, Waukena, Tipton, Pixley, 
Earlimart, Alpaugh, Allensworth, and Richgrove. These are all areas 
where TCRTA currently provides paratransit services. 

• Commingled Service 
On-demand (microtransit) and paratransit riders and vehicles are 
pooled. ADA paratransit trips will be available to be booked by phone or 
via the app. Paratransit fares will remain $3 for all eligible riders no 
matter how the ride is booked. 

• Service Hours  
Monday-Saturday  7:00 am to 7:00 pm 
Sunday  8:00 am to 5:00 pm 

• Fares (one-way) 
General       $5 
Trips beginning/ending at a Transit Center $4 
Paratransit      $3 (requires verification) 

 
 Revised Service Area: Visalia-Farmersville-Ivanhoe-Tulare 

• Service Changes 
Intracity travel in the City of Visalia is unavailable. 

• Travel Parameters 
Riders can travel between Visalia, Farmersville, Ivanhoe, and Tulare.  

• Service Hours  
Monday-Saturday  7:00 am to 7:00 pm 
Sunday  8:00 am to 5:00 pm 

• Fares (one-way) 
General       $5 
Trips beginning/ending at a Transit Center $4 
 

78



RESOLUTION: 2024-034 

3 
 

Unchanged Zone: Lindsay-Strathmore-Poplar (previously Lindsay-
Porterville) 

• Travel Parameters 
Riders can travel within and between Lindsay, Strathmore, Cotton-
Poplar, and to/from the Porterville Transit Center. 

• Service Hours  
Monday-Saturday  6:00 am to 10:00 pm 
Sunday  8:00 am to 8:00 pm 

• Fares (one-way)  
General       $5 
Trips beginning/ending at a Transit Center $4 
Paratransit      $3 (requires verification) 

 
Unchanged Zone: Woodlake  

• Travel Parameters 
Riders can travel within and between Woodlake and Elderwood. 

• Service Hours  
Monday-Saturday  7:00 am to 7:00 pm 
Sunday  8:00 am to 5:00 pm 

• Fares (one-way) 
General       $5 
Trips beginning/ending at a Transit Center $4 
Paratransit      $3 (requires verification) 
 

Unchanged Zone: Dinuba 
• Travel Parameters 

Riders can travel within and between Dinuba and North County, which 
includes Delft Colony, London, Traver, Monson, Calgro, Seville, Sultana, 
Orosi, Cutler, and Yettem. 

• Service Hours  
Monday-Saturday  7:00 am to 7:00 pm 
Sunday  8:00 am to 5:00 pm 

• Fares (one-way) 
General       $5 
Trips beginning/ending at a Transit Center $4 
Paratransit      $3 (requires verification) 
 

 

79



RESOLUTION: 2024-034 

4 
 

 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION was adopted upon motion of ______________ and 
seconded by ______________ at meeting thereof held on the 18th day of November 2024. 

 
 

AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:  

     
 
 
 

Signed_________________________ 
       Jose Sigala 
       Board Chair 
 
 
ATTEST: 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution 2024-034 was duly adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the Tulare County Regional Transit Agency at a regular meeting 
thereof held on the 18th day November 2024. 
 
 
Signed_______________________ 

Derek Winning 
Interim Executive Director 

 

 

80



1 
 

Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
 

AGENDA ITEM V-E 

November 18, 2024 
Prepared by Derek Winning, TCRTA Staff  
 
SUBJECT: 

Information: TCRTA T-Pass Distribution Memo  

BACKGROUND: 

The T-Pass is a regional monthly pass enables unlimited rides on fixed route and dial-a-
ride services.  The T-Pass Program began in 2011 by agreement between the Tulare 
County Association of Governments (TCAG) and the region’s transit providers.  The 
agreement governs the price of the passes and the methodology to determine the 
distribution of revenues collected at the various transit centers in the region which is 
based upon the T-Pass ridership of each of each transit service.  The County of Tulare 
administered the T-Pass Program for many years until the formation of the Tulare County 
Regional Transit Agency (TCRTA).  

The T-Pass has historically been used as a “flash pass” in which the driver manually 
tabulates the number of riders that use the pass.  This has led to inaccurate estimates of 
ridership over the years which was compounded by the Covid -19 Pandemic era when 
fares were not collected for long periods of time by certain providers in the region.  Rolling 
3-year averages were used to determine transit provider T-Pass ridership during covid 
and its immediate aftermath. That method has reached its useful life.  

DISCUSSION: 
TCRTA initially developed a distribution memo based upon the ridership data submitted 
by both Visalia Transit and TCRTA.  The raw ridership data indicated that TCRTA would 
be due a distribution from Visalia Transit in the amount of $47,498 which is not typical as 
Visalia Transit historically has the higher percentage of T-Pass ridership in the region.  
TCRTA and Visalia Transit staff agreed to work together on ridership estimates using the 
prior method of 3-year averages to no avail as the estimates used for the prior 3 years 
were exactly the same.  The TCRTA Interim Executive Director agreed to take a look at 
the historic ridership data and develop an estimate for FY 23/24.  A linear projection 
method was used to estimate FY23/24 ridership for each agency that was based upon 
ridership data from the years 2016-2020 prior to the covid pandemic.  
The revised estimate is more in line with the historic data and results in a distribution to 
Visalia Transit in the amount of $89,045. 

81



2 
 

Fortunately, TCRTA and Visalia Transit have been able to implement Genfare generated 
T-Passes that can be read by electronic fare equipment in the fall of 2024 which should 
greatly improve the accuracy of T-Pass ridership data.  Visalia and TCRTA have agreed 
to revisit the FY 23/24 T-Pass distribution based upon actual ridership data collected 
electronically for the remainder of FY 24/25. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Information and Discussion Only  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. FY 23/24 TCRTA T-Pass Distribution Memo   

 

82



M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: October 17, 2024 

TO: City of Visalia Transit 

CC: Tulare County Association Governments 

FROM: Derek Winning, Interim Executive Director & Teresa Ortega, Transit Analyst 

SUBJECT: Regional T-Pass Second Distribution Balances for June 30, 2024. 

REGIONAL T-PASS SALES SUMMARY 

REGIONAL T-PASS SALES SUMMARY 

T-Pass revenues and program expenses for Fiscal Year 2023/24 are detailed in the following table.  These
funds will be distributed to participating agencies based on projected ridership for the distribution for July
2023 through June 30, 2024.

T-Pass printing expenses totaled $5,799 but no administration was calculated for the fiscal year. T-Pass’
net revenues were $561,021

Total Revenue sharing for distributions for July 2023-June 30, 2024 $566,820 
 Total Annual Revenue Program Revenue $566,820 

Admin and Printing Costs $5,799 
Total Annual Revenue sharing for distributions $561,021 

Below is a final summary of Projected Regional T- PASS sales for FY23/24 reflecting the distribution of 
revenue-sharing balances as of July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024. The City of Visalia and TCRTA both agree 
that this projected methodology will be revisited at the next distribution and will reassess the ridership 
estimate for FY 23/24 at that time based on actual FY 24/25 ridership now that T-Pass can be read by the 
Genfare equipment of both agencies. .  

Methodology 

FY 2023/24 Visalia Ridership Estimate

TCRTA Visalia T % V % TCRTA Visalia T % V %
2016 134,125 111,579 54.6% 45.4% 98,950$          173,640$       36.3% 63.7%
2017 101,095 81,260 55.4% 44.6% 124,100$       175,530$       41.4% 58.6%
2018 132,881 136,812 49.3% 50.7% 223,020$       134,110$       62.4% 37.6%
2019 128,045 165,087 43.7% 56.3% 317,180$       151,980$       67.6% 32.4%
2020 98,100 115,745 45.9% 54.1% 188,905$       88,740$          68.0% 32.0%
2021 120,631 139,154 46.4% 53.6% 59,045$          148,245$       28.5% 71.5%
2022 120,631 139,154 46.4% 53.6% 93,225$          72,905$          56.1% 43.9%
2023 120,631 139,154 46.4% 53.6% 244,625$       183,790$       57.1% 42.9%
2024 116,117 135,780 46.1% 53.9% 181,764$       103,856$       63.6% 36.4%

2024 Adjust 86,442 101,080 46.1% 53.9% 347,676$       213,345$       62.0% 38.0%
TCRTA Actual Visalia Projected TCRTA Actual Visalia Actual

FY 2023/24 T-Pass Revenue 

T - Pass Ridership Estimate - FY 2023/24

Item V-E-1

83



Linear projection for Visalia 2024 Ridership from 2016-2023 adjusted to 2024 TCRTA Actual Ridership. 
Visalia Ridership Estimate reduced by 6 weeks to account for no service during strike. 

SUMMARY OF REVENUE-SHARING BY AGENCY 

 TCRTA had sales of $347,676 resulting in an over collection of $89,045

 The City of Visalia had sales of $213,345 resulting in a under collection of $89,045. The under collection
of T-PASS sales by TCRTA results in the following:

1. TCRTA needs to share revenue with Visalia Transit in the amount of $89,045. Visalia Transit
should prepare invoices for TCRTA, as described above. If you have any questions, please call
Teresa at (559) 623-0831.

 -

 20,000

 40,000

 60,000

 80,000

 100,000

 120,000

 140,000

 160,000

 180,000

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Ax
is 

Ti
tle

Year 

T-Pass Ridership

TCRTA

Visalia

Item V-E-1

84



Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 

AGENDA ITEM V-F 
November 18, 2024 
Prepared by Olivia Forte, Transit Analyst 

SUBJECT: 
INFORMATION: TCRTA Transport Service: Policy Implementation (2) 

BACKGROUND: 
TCRTA Transport launched Phase 3 on July 1, 2024. TCRTA Transport is an accessible, 
on-demand service that allows riders the freedom and flexibility to request trips as needed 
within these designated service zones. Microtransit riders may use the app or call the 
TCRTA call center to plan same-day trips. Paratransit eligible riders may do the same, in 
applicable service zones, as well as plan trips up to 14 days in advance.  

Per the TCRTA Transport Terms of Use, under Section 3 – Eligibility to Use the Service, 

“By using the TRANSPORT app, you represent that: 1) you are at least 18 years 
old; or 2) that you are 18 years old and you have given us your consent to allow 
any of your minor dependents to use this site; or 3) that you are a minor who is at 
least 13 years old and have received consent from your parent or guardian to 
use these Services. If you are a parent or guardian of a minor who has registered 
for or used the Services without your consent, please contact us 
at info@gotcrta.org”.

DISCUSSION: 
TCRTA Transport operates in distinct service zones across Tulare County, expanding 
access to more communities, residents, and everyday users than in its first and second 
phases. With greater access to the system and service come also situations wherein 
policies must be implemented to ensure the safety, integrity, and functionality of service. 

The use of TCRTA Transport for children and minors is not uncommon. For example, 
service is often used for children to attend or return from school. As such, it is imperative 
that clear language delineate under what circumstances that children and minors may 
utilize the service. This verbiage includes car seat safety and rider requirements, as well 
as unaccompanied minor rider requirements. Both such policies contribute to safe, 
functional, and legally compliant microtransit service.  

ATTACHMENT: 
1. Tulare County Regional Transit Agency Car Seat Safety Policy Memo
2. Tulare County Regional Transit Agency Minor Rider Policy

85

mailto:info@gotcrta.org


Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 

559.623.0450 

210 North Church Street Suite B 

Visalia, CA 93291 

www.tularecog.org 

CITY OF DINUBA   CITY OF EXETER   CITY OF FARMERSVILLE   CITY OF LINDSAY 

CITY OF TULARE   CITY OF WOODLAKE   COUNTY OF TULARE 

TULE RIVER TRIBE OF CALIFORNIA 

M E M O R A N D U M 

Date: October 24, 2024 

To: Transit Staff 

From: TCRTA  

Subject: Car Seat Safety Policy 

Car Seat Safety on TCRTA Transport 

TCRTA’s microtransit service is open to the public with no certification necessary for use. 

Minors are permitted to ride, with guardian permission and/or supervision. The safety of all 

passengers, minors included, is of the highest priority.  

All passengers, regardless of age, are to wear a seatbelt, unless they are unable to do so due to 

disability.  

Under California law: 

• Children under 2 years of age shall ride in a rear-facing car seat unless the child weighs

40 or more pounds OR is 40 or more inches tall. The child shall be secured in a manner

that complies with the height and weight limits specified by the manufacturer of the car

seat. (California Vehicle Code Section 27360.)

• Children under the age of 8 must be secured in a car seat or booster seat in the back

seat.

Minors that are suspected, by the operator or other personnel, of meeting the above criteria 

requiring a car seat or booster seat, shall ride in one. Car seats and booster seats are not 

provided by TCRTA Transport. TCRTA’s operators and other transit personnel are not 

responsible for or authorized to install car seats or booster seats for such minors utilizing this 

service. 

If an adult/guardian reserves a ride alongside any minors meeting the above criteria, it is their 

responsibility to install the car seat or booster seat in line with the seats’ directions and safety 

procedures.  

In the event that an operator or other personnel engages with an adult/guardian refusing to 

comply with this policy, the ride will be cancelled. Personnel shall report to dispatch, a road 

supervisor, and/or other supervisorial staff of the incident.  

For more information on car seat safety, please visit the California Highway Patrol website: 

https://www.chp.ca.gov/programs-services/programs/child-safety-seats 

Item V-F-1

86

https://www.chp.ca.gov/programs-services/programs/child-safety-seats


Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 East Center Avenue 

Visalia, CA 93291 

CITY OF DINUBA   CITY OF EXETER   CITY OF FARMERSVILLE   CITY OF LINDSAY 
CITY OF TULARE   CITY OF WOODLAKE   COUNTY OF TULARE 

TULE RIVER TRIBE OF CALIFORNIA 

Unaccompanied Minor Policy 
TCRTA’s microtransit service (TRANSPORT) is an accessible, curb-to- curb, shared-ride, on-
demand service with a flexible on-call schedule allowing riders to request a trip, as needed. Minors 
are permitted to ride, with guardian permission and/or supervision. The safety of all passengers, 
minors included, is of the highest priority. To protect minor-riders’ safety, operators’ integrity, and 
functionality of service, TCRTA has implemented an unaccompanied minor policy for 
TRANSPORT services.  

Per the TCRTA Transport Terms of Use, under Section 3 – Eligibility to Use the Service, 

“By using the TRANSPORT app, you represent that: 1) you are at least 18 years old; or 
2) that you are 18 years old and you have given us your consent to allow any of your
minor dependents to use this site; or 3) that you are a minor who is at least 13 years old
and have received consent from your parent or guardian to use these Services. If you
are a parent or guardian of a minor who has registered for or used the Services without
your consent, please contact us at info@gotcrta.org”.

Minors under the age of 13 are not permitted to use the app or render its services without the 
permission of a parent/guardian. Furthermore, minors under the age of 13 are not permitted to 
render services unaccompanied.  

If you have any questions about this policy, please call TCRTA at (559) 372-2290. 

Item V-F-2

87

mailto:info@gotcrta.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 

88



Tulare County Regional Transit Agency (TCRTA) 
2025 Board Meeting Schedule 

Date Location 

January 27, 2025* Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

February 24, 2025* Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

March 17, 2025 Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

April 21, 2025 Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

May 19, 2025 Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

June 16, 2025 Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

July 21, 2025 Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

August 18, 2025 Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

September 15, 2025 Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

October 20, 2025 Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

November 17, 2025 Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

December 15, 2025 Tulare County Regional Transit Agency 
200 E Center Ave., Visalia, CA 93291 

The TCRTA Board meets at 3:30 pm. Most meetings fall on the third Monday of each 
month. Meeting dates with asterisks have been changed due to holidays and/or calendar 
conflicts. 

Meetings will be held at the location noted above for each month, unless otherwise noted 
in that month’s agenda. 

Item VII - A

89



* Exception to standard board meeting dates is due to Holidays
or a meeting conflict.

# Meeting locations are subject to change. 
^ Times may vary if a workshop precedes a meeting.  

 2025 TCAG/TCTA and TAC Meeting Calendar with Meeting Locations 
TAC Meeting (Thursdays, 1:30 p.m.) TCAG/TCTA Board Meeting 

(3rd Monday, 1:00 pm) Location# 

January 23, 2025* January 27, 2025* Woodlake Community Center 
145 N. Magnolia St. | Woodlake, CA 93286 

February 20, 2025* February 24, 2025* Ivanhoe Memorial Building 
33209 Hawthorne Rd. | Ivanhoe, CA 93235 

March 13, 2025 ^March 17, 2025 
Tulare County Administrative Building| BOS 

Chambers 
2800 W. Burrel Ave | Visalia, CA 93291 

April 17, 2025 ^April 21, 2025 Tulare Ag Auditorium 
4437 S. Laspina | Tulare CA 93274 

May 15, 2025 May 19, 2025 Exeter Veterans Memorial 
324 N. Kaweah Ave. | Exeter, CA 93221 

June 12, 2025 June 16, 2025 Porterville Fire Department Training Facility 
500 N. Newcomb Street | Porterville, CA 93257 

July 17, 2025 July 21, 2025 TBD 

August 14, 2025 August 18, 2025 Dinuba Location TBD 

September 11, 2025 September 15, 2025 Strathmore Veterans Building TBD 

October 16, 2025 October 20, 2025 
Tulare County Administrative Building| BOS 

Chambers 
2800 W. Burrel Ave | Visalia, CA 93291 

November 13, 2025 November 17, 2025 TBD 

December 11, 2025 ^December 15, 2025 Tulare Ag Auditorium 
4437 S. Laspina | Tulare CA 93274 

Item VII - A

90



Dinuba, Exeter, Farmersville, Lindsay, Porterville, 
Tulare, Visalia, Woodlake 

Meeting Location Possibilities: 

Tulare County Board of Supervisors  
2800 W. Burrel Ave. Visalia, CA 93291 
(559) 636-5000 -

Dinuba Community Center 
1390 E. Elizabeth Way, Dinuba, CA 93618 
(559) 591-5940

Professional Development Center (PDC) 
4031 W. Noble Ave, Visalia, CA 93277 
(559)  

Tulare Ag Auditorium 
4437 S. Laspina, Tulare, CA 93274 
(559) 684-3350

Visalia Convention Center 
303 E. Acequia Visalia, CA 93291 
(559) 713-4000

Woodlake Community Center 
145 N. Magnolia St. Woodlake, CA 93286 
(559) 564-8055

Porterville Fire Department Training Facility 
500 N. Newcomb St., Porterville, CA 93257 
(559) 782-7526

Farmersville Community Center (Boys & Girls Club) 
623 N. Avery Street (Corner of Ash), Farmersville CA. 93223 
(559) 594-1977

Exeter Veterans Memorial Building 
324 N. Kaweah Ave., Exeter, CA 93221 
(559) 592-2263
samuel@exeterveteransmemorialbuilding.org

Lindsay Wellness Center 
860 North Sequoia, Lindsay, CA 93247 
(559) 562-5196

Item VII - A

91

mailto:samuel@exeterveteransmemorialbuilding.org

	Item IV-A TCRTA October 2024 Meeting Minutes
	Item IV-B TCRTA November Special Meeting Minutes
	Item IV-C Monthly Ridership Summary
	Item IV-D Preliminary Financial Statement as of October 2024
	November 18th, 2024

	Item IV-D-1 Preliminary Financial Statementas of October 2024
	Item IV-E TCAG TCRTA SB 125 Program Cooperative Agreement
	AGENDA ITEM IV-E
	November 18, 2024

	Item IV-E-1 TCAG TCRTA SB 125 Program Cooperative Agreement
	Item IV-E-2 Reso 2024-030 Approve TCAG TCRTA SB 125 Program Cooperative Agreement
	Item IV-F Adoption of Resolution 2024-031 of Agreement with TCAG for Transit Services for the COS Student Transit Pass Program
	Item IV-F-1 Agreement with TCAG for Transit Services for College of the Sequoias Student Transit Pass Program
	RECITALS

	Item IV-F-2 Resolution 2024-031 Agreement with TCAG for Transit Services for Colleges of the Sequoias Student Transit Pass Program
	Item V-A Adoption of Resolution 2024-032  to Approve Interim Finance Manager
	AGENDA ITEM V-A
	November 18th, 2024

	Item V-A-I Resolution 2024-032 Appoint Interim Finance Manager
	Item V-B Transdev Contract Amend 1
	AGENDA ITEM V-B
	November 18, 2024

	Item V-B-1 Transdev_Contract_Amend_1_111424
	Item V-B-2 Reso 2024-033 Approve Transdev Contract Amendment 1
	Item V-C Public Hearing on Proposed Microtransit Service Changes
	Item V-C-1 Public Notice for Proposed Microtransit Service Changes
	Item V-D TCRTA Microtransit Redeployment and Microtransit Pilot Target Metrics
	AGENDA ITEM V-D
	November 18, 2024

	Item V-D-1 Public Notice for Proposed Microtransit Service Changes
	Item V-D-2 Reso 2024-034 Approve TCRTA Microtransit Redeployment and Microtransit Pilot Target Metrics
	Item V-E TCRTA T-Pass Distribution
	AGENDA ITEM V-E
	November 18, 2024

	Item V-E-1 TCRTA  T-Pass Distribution Memo
	Item V-F Microtransit Minor Safety Policies (2)
	AGENDA ITEM V-F
	November 18, 2024

	Item V-F-1 Car Seat Safety Policy - Memo
	Item V-F-2 Unaccompanied Minor-Rider Policy on Letterhead
	Item VII-A TCRTA 2025 Board Meeting Schedule



